
Lapeer County Board of Commissioners 
255 Clay Street, Suite 301 

Lapeer, Michigan 48446 
Phone: (810) 667-0366 

Fax: (810) 667-0369 
www.lapeercountymi.gov 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

A-G-E-N-D-A

**COMMISSION CHAMBERS** 

• CHAIRMAN CALL TO ORDER

May 9, 2024 

9:00 A.M. 

GENERAL BUSINESS 

• ROLL CALL ATTENDANCE BY CLERK

• OPENING PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

• APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

• CONSIDERATION OF THE DRAFT MINUTES FROM THE APRIL 11, 2024
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING

• DISTRIBUTION AND REVIEW OF OVERNIGHT TRAVEL REQUESTS, GRANT
APPLICATIONS AND BUDGET AMENDMENTS (throughout the meeting)

• DEPARTMENT HEAD UPDATES - (As needed, No Action Required)

• PUBLIC TIME - Citizens Comments (maximum of 3 minutes per person)

NEW BUSINESS 

1) COUNTY SURVEYOR, Henry Horton - Request to approve annual FY 2024

Remonumentation Grant Agreements and Peer Review Group Agreements.

2) PROSECUTING ATTORNEY - Request authorization to renew Karpel software annual fees.

3) MENTAL HEALTH -

A. Request to approve budget amendments for FY 2023-2024.

B. Request to approve the second of three appropriation transfers for FY 2023-2024.

C. Request to approve annual needs assessment.

4) ADMINISTRATION/FINANCE-

A. Request authorization to pay Shifman Fournier for labor services through April 30, 2024

B. Request to approve budget amendment for Polly Ann Trail Fund 214, to reflect approved

funding.

Continued-



Committee of the Whole May 9, 2024 Page2 

OLD BUSINESS 

5) 

ADDITIONAL ITEMS (if needed) 

6) 

OTHER BUSINESS 

7) 

• PUBLIC TIME- Citizens Comments (maximum of 3 minutes per person)

• COMMISSIONERS' REPORTS

• ADMINISTRATOR AND/OR CFO UPDATES.

• **CLOSED SESSION** (only if needed)

ADJOURN 

** Public Recording Notice: Please be advised that the meetings of the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners are streamed live 
and recorded on social media for public viewing and transparency. We respectfully request that anyone addressing the Board of 
Commissioners during "Public Time" be proactive and make every effort in keeping their words and language appropriate for ALL 
users, including children for educational purposes. 

The County Controller/Administrator shall not edit or delete video of any County Commissioner Meeting. Should any issue arise with 
any content of a meeting video, the Board of Commission members shall be notified. Discretion as to changes to recordings/videos 
rests solely with the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners. However, a language/content warning may be added to the description 
of a video when appropriate by the Administrator. (rev. 6/2212023) **

Upcoming Meetings/Public Hearings/Events: 

FULL BOARD MEETING- 05/23/2024 

NEXT C.0. W MEETING - 06/13/2024 

FOLLOWING FULL BOARD: 06/27/2024 

All sub-committee meeting agendas are posted 

on the County website if they are being held. 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
April 11, 2024 

9:00 a.m. 

Vice-Chairman Mast called the meeting to order at 9:04 a.m. in the Commission Chambers 
on the lower level of the County Complex Building. Commissioner Haggadone opened 
the meeting with a prayer. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

Present: Commissioners Brian Zender, Brad Haggadone, William Hamilton, Gary 
Howell, Kevin Knisely, Truman Mast 

Absent: Commissioner Tom Kohlman 

Others: �oses_ Sanzo, County Controlle�/Admini�,t��l; ; Jackie Arnold, Chief
FInanc1al Officer, Amy Stearns, Chief Dep · ,. nty Clerk 

Motion by Hamilton, supported by Knisely, to approv� e ageri · ��:w.ith the deletion of a 
closed session. Motion carried. · / '\'fJ,, 

��it� .. 
Motion by H?well, supported by Ha�gadon�.rt

1
� prove t�� .minu�es from!\n� March 14,

2023 Committee of the Whole Meeting, as pre�· lilted. _n earned. ''4�1� · 

No comments were received. 

Public Time - Three peorJ spoke dud}· 
.,, 

-�t
Undersheriff, Micha�l;�Qdette, .. t�d that •, Jf· heriff is not available for the update and 
future goals of the-d�partment, and: that he w.iil. present them at a future meeting. 

�t�lif�¾1, -� . 
Motion by Haggadorie;;,:��PBLj · '.§Y,��f}J;$..�!Y_, ''l9'1recommend to the Full Board, allowing
the Sheriff�l9!fbc�., .. to suqQ}Jt'f>ay�entto-:G,£'y.';for the Sheriff's App. To be paid from line 
207-351:< · 0:·200.00.-. Mot10 · arned.

' . "'?i{i
Jf
�:: ., . •. 

Motion •PY Knisely, suppQ.r;ted o • �_ijmilton, to recommend to the Full Board, to adopt the 
2024 i:i.e���r County Eq�_!izaticifl�Report as presented; and further, to authorize the 
ChairmahMce Chair and tlounty Clerk to sign the L-4024 and L-4037C's to be submitted 

,;..t�l•f'-. • • ���!, , to the State,qf�M1ch1gan. ,M_qt1on earned. 
,� t�� Jt ... ��w?::t!,/ 

Motion by Knisely,._(�.yp_gprted by Zender, to recommend to the Full Board, to accept the 
amendments to ther,F_i$'cal Year 24 Michigan Department of Health and Human Services 
(MDHHS) Comprehensive Agreement and authorize the Director/Health Officer to e-sign 
the documents, and that a copy be forwarded to the County Clerk to be entered into the 
official records as an exhibit. Motion carried. 

Motion by Haggadone, supported by Zender, to recommend to the Full Board, to authorize 
the payment of $6270.00 to Driverge for volunteer driver training and certification to be 
paid from line 293-682-956.040 (Education & Programs). Motion carried. 



Committee of the Whole April 11, 2024 Page 2 of 12 

Motion by Howell, supported by Haggadone, to recommend to the Full Board, to adopt the 
following Resolution: 

COUNTY OF LAPEER 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION FOR VETERANS AFFAIRS MILLAGE 
2024-R07 

Whereas the County of Lapeer Board of Commissioners is in agreement to 
approve the millage language for the purposes of continuing tq._support funding for the 
administration of Lapeer County's Department of Veteran's AffJff.i;,-·and, 

Whereas the previously approved millages for the La ,. .• ;,�County Veteran's Affairs 
expired in 2023; .. l . 

Whereas the Lapeer County Board of Commis�Joners se��s to approve a millage 
increase to support the Lapeer County Department ofVeteran's A{fairs up to the originally 
levied .185 mills. "'' ''·/.·" 'ii(\ 

Now Therefore Be It Resolved that tb�(e"6unty Clerk placetJ 'Rqn the ballot for 
August 6, 2024, election a millage of .185 mi!ls';fo'r a period o{ 6 years, 2O2{tt:}rough 2029,
for consideration by the electorate. ··<J:t;, "/:\ · :-c: 

Be It Further Resolved that the followin�)'s-fheJaf.lguage for the Veteran's Affairs 
millage to be submitted to the electorate. '·2\ · ffi'.v·· 

VETERANS AFFAIRS MILLAGE 
'�imoedSAb. ·-,<,,·.

Shall the expired previqus!y_ voted inqrE,::ase�Ar\:'th:�:,.t�� limitations in Lapeer County 
of 0.185 mills (.185 petifOPO of taxahtev�Jui?i), reHu�ed to .1813 mills (0.1813 per 
$1,000 of taxable v�lue) tiy:the requ:fre,(flmillage roYibacks, be renewed at and 
increased up t9 ,.tge(original v.<>ted 0.18�)-r,ills for 6 years, 2024 through 2029, 
inclusive, for the .continued fuh?fing of the.:t;;apeer County Department of Veterans' 
Affairs? ?r: .·.. . .<}'.·/i?i}\:[f;;f.,/::,c , ·\;;;\ 
If appro\1�9.,·Jhi�. r.,ew ·a,�_�jJJ,dnal mill�fge.yt9uld allow the County to levy up to 0.185 
mills _ (r�placing\Jh�_ two'{pnaviously authorized Veterans' Affairs Millages which 
expjr.�� ''in 2023f\f9� thetJ>,wpose of continuing to support funding for the 
admirfo;tration of Lape�r Coµnty's Department of Veterans' Affairs, raising an 
estimijJe9 $754,416.5tf".}n the ·ttr.st year if approved and levied. A property with a 
taxabl�'v�lue of $100,00O\would be annually taxed up to $18.50 for the millage. By 
operatior(B

f

M,ichigan l�w.jthis millage will disburse revenue to certain local units of 
government i11dl1Jding ,tiie.tity of Lapeer Downtown Development Authority and the 
City of Imlay CifyJ¥,,_g�Jitown Development Authority. 

YES·/'.'., [ ] 

Motion carried. 

NO [ ] 

Motion by Howell, supported by Zender, to approve the ballot language for the county
wide Emergency Medical Service millage renewal to be placed on the August 6, 2024 
primary election ballot, as follows: 



Committee of the Whole April 11, 2024 Page 3 of 12 

LAPEER COUNTY EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICE AUTHORITY MILLAGE 
RENEWAL AUTHORIZATION 

FOR SIX YEARS 

Shall Lapeer County be authorized to renew its millage supporting county-wide 
emergency medical services through an interlocal government agreement with the 
Lapeer County Emergency Medical Services Authority of 0.8814 mills with new additional 
millage of 0.3 mills for a total millage of 1.1814 mills ($1.18) for each $1,000.00 of taxable 
property value) for 6 years, from 2025 througl)_ 2030? It is estimated that this millage 
renewal for continuing county- wide emergency medical services will raise approximately 
$4,803,958.09 in its first year. By operation of Michigan law, !!J!s millage will disburse 
captured revenue to the City of Lapeer Downtown Developme . (e;uthority and the Village
of Otter Lake Downtown Development Authority. 

· · 

Roll Call vote: Howell, aye; Haggadone, aye; Hamilto,Q�.:s., ·e; :�i��ly, nay; Zender, aye; 
Mast, nay; Kohlman, absent. 4 ayes, 2 nays, 1 abs.�n .. fTMotion cafpied.

. ';;f· � 
,, 

Motion by Haggadone, supported by Hamilton,,ttQ,, ecommend to the q tJ�oard, to adopt 
the proposed resolution authorizing updates - ·•f�ffe lake levej for Merritt Ca�¢.i. 

. 
---/�t1 : 

·, •. s 

RESOLUJIO 

. . '•;�\ 
WHEREAS, Metr,i - ··k,e, locaf·· · eta •, .·Township, Lapeer County, 

Michigan has estab,,!!�h�crno ))take le' ' ·"·· the Lapeer County Circuit Court under 
Part 307 of the Natural"Resource tand Envi't .' · mental Protection Act, Act 451 of 1994, as 
amended ("Part 307}:);,and 

''�f �t�\- "• /� ·��ii;:�� ·.�-·. 
W . -�EAS, th1:L�.� _ ;, .. er Coun <1ij�rd of Commissioners and its delegated 

authori�Y. , t:1ff>',E3r0-Cou�fy'Rrain Commissioner, have jurisdiction for the operation and 
main eMarice of the�n6r.r:nal le��ls of Merritt Lake. MCL 324.30702; and . 

··:,s:_.r:;,,. < 
� ''/}>;:! ;;. ·�• .• 

·,�.HEREAS, Parr�07's prfmary mechanism to fund infrastructure and activities to
maintain"��t[itt Lake's no'fm!:11 levels is by special assessments using a lake level special 
assessment-J:llstrict estab.Iished by the Lapeer County Circuit Court. See e.g., MCL
324.30711; anq� · 

'-;t 

WHEREAS, eview of the historical court order relating to Merritt Lake's normal 
levels found that updates are necessary to be consistent with state law and the current 
operation of the lake level control structure. Moreover, the boundaries of the lake level 
special assessment district require updates to accurately reflect the parcels benefitting 
from the normal levels; and 



Committee of the Whole April 11, 2024 Page 4 of 12 

(Resolution 2024-R0S continued) 

WHEREAS, for the reasons stated herein, the Lapeer County Board of 
Commissioners finds it necessary to: (1) approve hiring legal counsel and engineers to 
assist with the Part 307 lake level process, including filing a petition in the Lapeer County 
Circuit Court; and (2) amend the lake level order for Merritt Lake to be consistent with 
state law and the current operation of the lake level control structure, update the special 
assessment district boundaries, and conduct any other needed updates. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. Legal Counsel: Lapeer County may retain legal couqsJ:iiJ•ahey Schultz Burzych
Rhodes PLC to assist with legal matters related to t�e��rt 307 lake level process.
Said legal counsel is explicitly authorized to file a:l���flUpn in the Lapeer County 
Circuit Court on behalf of Lapeer County to a111�Jfij:1he'���e level order for Merritt
Lake to be consistent with state law and th,�_ -i'urrent operation of the lake level
control structure, update the special ass�J�@fent district bol:i�"�fies, and conduct 
any other updates to the lake level order:,;tft:�t'are necessary to a'll§W-,Lapeer County
to maintain and operate the norrn,�t�iake levels .. ", of Merritt t��-13 .. See MCL 
324.30707(5) (circuit court has continu1fjg,jurisdic:tipgJ: . :;:',,t 

��-(ft�:§\: _.; '.�/!! f � 
2. Engineers: Lapeer County_ may retain the/enifineering firm BMJ Engineers &

Surveyors, Inc. to assist with :c;ctivi.ties related to maintenance and operation of the 
normal levels of Merritt Lake, -lric:iuding·b .. ut not limitefd.to preparation of studies and
recommendations related to th�}i�kelev�l_f.aqd boutidaries of the lake level special
assessment district;.0providing &x_gert t��firft0IJY. �elated to the lake level order; 
coordination regar9jog <pyvnership\(?f,,ia.:k� -l�vef'confrol infrastructure as necessary;
preparation of:an operator agreement; and assisfance with the compilation and
approval of.,a .special ass¢$�ment rol!?

·� 
- : .!. >' � '."', 

3. Costs of Actiy�ti�s: �H:�blt� a,s�g�tatJ�:with the expenditures authorized in this
res9lution,. includjnQ:J�taining all ,fi�'.c�s'sary consultants (e.g. legal counsel and
E:1�ineers)?�t,J_c3II be'.;r�Jf:1bursed by a·iake level special assessment district to the

.;:iextent permitted ,by Parf307. 
,- . ·j.·�·· '' :, -:.. 

'•\.;_��•':·, 

Motion:6'arried. 

:.:.: :.i:�; 
•�/--- �. : . � 

Motion by Haggadpne, sµr,ported by Hamilton, to recommend to the Full Board, to adopt 
the proposed resqlµtjorfaathorizing updates to the lake level for Lake Nepessing: 

LAPEER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

LAKE NEPESSING - LAKE LEVEL 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-R09 

WHEREAS, Lake Nepessing, located in Elba Township, Lapeer County, Michigan 
has an established normal lake level by the Lapeer County Circuit Court under Part 307 
of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, Act 451 of 1994, as amended 
("Part 307"); and 



Committee of the Whole April 11, 2024 Page 5 of 12 

(Resolution 2024-R09 continued) 

WHEREAS, the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners and its delegated 
authority, the Lapeer County Drain Commissioner, have jurisdiction for the operation and 
maintenance of the normal level of Lake Nepessing. MCL 324.30702; and 

WHEREAS, Part 307's primary mechanism to fund infrastructure and activities to 
maintain Lake Nepessing's normal level is by special assessments using a lake level 
special assessment district established by the Lapeer County Circuit Court. See e.g., MCL 
324.30711; and 

WHEREAS, a review of the historical court order reJJil®-9 to Lake Nepessing's 
normal level found that updates are necessary to be consi ' "'"nf with state law and the 
current operation of the lake level control structure. More.a· boundaries of the lake 
level special assessment district require updates I reflect the parcels 
benefitting from the normal level; and 

WHEREAS, for the reasons 

1. Legal Counsel:,?. ounty y . in e �·unsel Fahey Schultz Burzych 
'.1 �"'' 

... ,., 

Rhodes PLCJ.9,.-., t .J!!:!gal ma,:, .• , related to the Part 307 lake level process. 
S�id !egat,i,EQP'n'sel is ex�J�itly auth"i:',�"zed to file a petition in the Lapeer County 
C1rcu1t CoCJf.t.tbJJ behalf apeer C . . to amend the lake level order for Lake 
Nepessing toifq�.ico���,.. · 

,,.'-J·: and the curren� operation of �he lake
leya,t�9..9!(g,I stra�_,,�;$,�Vupdate~ """'""".ec1al assessment district boundaries, and 
· = i:futP%imt��!heftyp

ks
q��es to the lake level order that are necessary to al_low

eer County;iq maIntaJn and operate the normal lake level of Lake Nepessmg. 
MCL 324.3'• -· , 7(Srt ,!,, .uit court has continuing jurisdiction). 

2. En ,f!�ers: Lape aunty may retain the engineering ·firm BMJ Engineers &
Surv�99rs, Inc. to Ja_,.,Jst with activities related to maintenance and operation of the
normaM�lil of ,k���rNepessing, including but not limited to p�eparation of studies
and recotn1�n(!�trons related to the lake level and boundaries of the lake level
special assef�ment district; providing expert testimony related to the lake level
order; coordination regarding ownership of lake level control infrastructure as
necessary; and assistance with the compilation and approval of a special
assessment roll.

3. Costs of Activities: All costs associated with the expenditures authorized in this
resolution, including retaining all necessary consultants (e.g. legal counsel and
engineers), shall be reimbursed by a lake level special assessment district to the
extent permitted by Part 307.

Motion carried. 



Committee of the Whole April 11, 2024 Page 6 of 12 

Motion by Haggadone, supported by Hamilton, to recommend to the Full Board, to adopt 
the proposed resolution authorizing updates to the lake level for Lake Metamora: 

LAPEER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

LAKE METAMORA- LAKE LEVEL 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-R1 O 

WHEREAS, Lake Metamora, located in Metamora Township, Lapeer County, 
Michigan has an established normal lake level by the Lapeer County Circuit Court under 
Part 307 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protec�i.P •i"Jct, Act 451 of 1994, as
amended ("Part 307"); and · · 

WHEREAS, the Lapeer County Board of C.¢'.m, . j1e_rs and its delegated 
authority, the Lapeer County Drain Commissioner, hc;iVE3':Jurisdictic@for the operation and 
maintenance of the normal level of Lake Metamor�f:d\/lCL 324.30762j,md 

.. ,:.·in0��,--:· \r:.:<�-:;'•.:; 
WHEREAS, Part 307's primary mecbahis'm to fund infrastructure/an"d activities to 

maintain Lake Metamora's normal level is 'i:,f-t�pecial ci,�S�Ssments using\�' lake level 
special assessment district established by the Lap��r CQui:ity Circuit Court. See e.g., MCL
324.30711; and ':tt-; /;::c.'/· 

WHEREAS, a review of the::hiJto'deal�court o�der0.relating to Lake Metamora's 
normal level found that updates are necesSaryJo be co.niistent with state law and the 
current operation of the lake level controfstructur�<Mor�ovet;the boundaries of the lake 
level special assessm¢hf?aJstrict requirl :UP��tes•:fir;:�fccurately reflect the parcels 
benefitting from the norr:nal level; .and .·. •":fv' 

·, - ··· ··=--·-r;. t\·� 
-·. ..,. '-;;-__.'. -�:\{. 

WHEREAs;·. for the (�a;sons stateij, rherein, the Lapeer County Board of 
Commissioners finds)t.!"}eC���-�r;yjp}{(1}.gppr9._ye hiring legal counsel and engineers to 
assist witb Jhe.Pflrt 301-"takeJevel prcicesstt'.including filing a petition in the Lapeer County 
Circuit Oo�r{·atic((2).J1men�·ti,oe lake level order for Lake Metamora to be consistent with 
stat�;l(i#?and the cuq:�Q.� ope&tipn of the lake level control structure, update the special 
asse$$rnent district boi:.uidc:1ries;:�nd conduct any other needed updates. 

'--��-_;,: ... 

'•· .. ;,;�_ ·.·:/.,�.

NOW, TH�REFORE, BE 11":'.�RESOLVED: 
'.-• .. ' . ·. . '";:;.�• 

., .. \; _  :· 
;_,.� '· •"": 

1. Lega{��:unsel:"L,·peer County may retain legal counsel Fahey Schultz Burzych
Rhodes PLi¢J9.1i:sgist with legal matters related to the Part 307 lake level process.
Said legal counsel is explicitly authorized to file a petition in the Lapeer County
Circuit Court on behalf of Lapeer County to amend the lake level order for Lake
Metamora to be consistent with state law and the current operation of the lake level
control structure, update the special assessment district boundaries, and conduct
any other updates to the lake level order that are necessary to allow Lapeer County
to maintain and operate the normal lake level of Lake Metamora. See MCL
324.30707(5) (circuit court has continuing jurisdiction).



Committee of the Whole April 11, 2024 Page 7 of 12 

(Resolution 2024-R 1 0 continued) 

2. Engineers: Lapeer County may retain the engineering firm BMJ Engineers &
Surveyors, Inc. to assist with activities related to maintenance and operation of the 
normal level of Lake Metamora, including but not limited to preparation of studies 
and recommendations related to the lake level and boundaries of the lake level 
special assessment district; providing expert testimony related to the lake level 
order; coordination regarding ownership of lake level control infrastructure as 
necessary; and assistance with the compilation and approval of a special 
assessment roll. 

,.:'·c, '\ 

3. Costs of Activities: All costs associated with the expen�iiures authorized in this
resolution, including retaining all necessary cons�ti�p!�i'(e.g. legal counsel and 
engineers), shall be reimbursed by a lake level sper' :, ssessment district to the
extent permitted by Part 307. 

Motion carried. 

·:;:�:�,
Motion by Haggadon_e, suppo�e� by Hamilton, c(S�E�t,;; nd to t�e Full Board, to adopt
the proposed resolution authorizing l:.IP,dates to the··I� e,Jevel for Winn Lake: 

�������- �- � 
LAPEER COUNTY�OARO.OF CO MISSIONERS 

-�� y'"��i�J}/i-)�' ���f�.'. 
�· .. WINN LAi:fE - -., ·e;l'.iEVEL ".'? 

. {(ji,f - . ,._,, V ••,-;4iil?;·
·· · OLUTIO, 0. 2024-RH

�;sf{!=}'. -��%¾
W�EREASi�rn La�i�.i�e!.ed in t -,;B�er Townsh_ip, �apeer County, Michigan

has established norm·.�tl�,��J�Yr.�LS.;\9¥l�� a ��r �ounty Circuit Court under Part 307 of
the Natural,Resources and £nv1ronmenta tect1on Act, Act 451 of 1994, as amended
("Part 30f;);Ji

l,;

�d
1'l{%�;;:,,,· '-t��� '� . .

. 

, ,, HEREAS, the_:1J,apeer4t}�J�unty Board of Commissioners and its delegated 
authority}�the Lapeer Co't:{Qty Drairi ... eommissioner, have jurisdiction for the operation and 
maintena'fice,pf the normajJ<3vels of Winn Lake. MCL 324.30702; and 

:J...�_';)Y,:!._1..'"i.- f,i,<'-y':. 

-���'t�, .. �r.J 
WHER�!�, Par,! 3-�7's primary mechanism to fund infrastructure and activities to 

maintain Winn Lal(e'.s·n<:>rmal levels is by special assessments using a lake level special 
assessment distri6t��:�tablished by the Lapeer County Circuit Court. See e.g., MCL 
324.30711; and .,, 

WHEREAS, a review of the historical court order relating to Winn Lake's normal 
levels found that updates are necessary to be consistent with state law and the current 
operation of the lake level control structure. Moreover, the boundaries of the lake level 
special assessment district require updates to accurately reflect the parcels benefitting 
from the normal levels; and 



Committee of the Whole April 11, 2024 Page 8 of 12 

(Resolution 2024-R 11 continued) 

WHEREAS, for the reasons stated herein, the Lapeer County Board of 
Commissioners finds it necessary to: (1) approve hiring legal counsel and engineers to 
assist with the Part 307 lake level process, including filing a petition in the Lapeer County 
Circuit Court; and (2) amend the lake level order for Winn Lake to be consistent with state 
law and the current operation of the lake level control structure, update the special 
assessment district boundaries, and conduct any other needed updates. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

4. Legal Counsel: Lapeer County may retain legal coune,,!J'7ahey Schultz Burzych
Rhodes PLC to assist with legal matters related to the'.B!art 307 lake level process.
Said legal counsel is explicitly authorized to file,,tf p'fl:tjen in the Lapeer County
Circuit Court on behalf of Lapeer County to ameoifthe;l�ke level order for Winn
Lake to be consistent with state law and thEt,current opet�tion of the lake level
control structure, update the special asses_sment district bobi:fdaries, and conduct
any other updates to the lake level order:�tha'.t'iire necessary to aW9wJ._apeer County
to maintain and operate the norm�i tfake levels of Winn Lake. See MCL
324.30707(5) (circuit court has conti�'tiiffo-jurisdicJ1§�):

-·, 

�:(;�:- �tt·:.···. 
5. Engineers: Lapeer County ,may retain th�)�ngineering firm BMJ Engineers &

Surveyors, Inc. to assist witti'�cfivities related to:rnaintenance and operation of the
normal levels of Winn Lake, iri1::iuditjg:pµt not liml�edto preparation of studies and
recommendations related to theJake 1eveland boundaries of the lake level special
assessment district;. providing expert t�t1m9"_ny.,,relate'cl to the lake level order;
coordination regarding·qwnership;tifJak�'.'.fevercoMfrol infrastructure as necessary;
and assistance with the compilation/arid approval of a special assessment roll.

. . ' ':' .. ; .. 

6. Costs of Activities: All to.sts associated with the expenditures authorized in this
resolution, in'tlua_ing set�Jnir.i�g)�,(9��e-�$ary consultants (e.g. legal counsel and
eng\Q�_�r�). shall-.�� -��1mbursed·by_iJake level special assessment district to the
�xt�nfperrnitt�d by ea,� 307.

Motio_n :<;,arried . 
.. ';•.;_·/�� 

-;': ·,· � ;:_.:�{f ' 

Motion byj<ri,Lsely, suppo��d by H�milton, to recommend to the Full Board, to authorize 
payment to·�$

f

ttfman Fou�,(!f@'r, in the amount of $360.00, for labor related legal services 
rendered thro'i:igfrMarch :�,f; 2024, to be paid from line item 101-239-801.020. Roll Call 
vote: Knisely, aye)t�:',��r: aye; Hamilton, aye; Haggadone, aye; Howell, aye; Mast, aye; 
Kohlman, absent. 6.'.ayes, 1 absent. Motion carried. 

,, 

Motion by Howell, supported by Haggadone, pursuant to motion 121-2024 of the March 
28, 2024, Regtilar Board Meeting, giving the Committee of the Whole the authority to act, 
which shall include forwarding the motion to the next regular meeting to be entered into 
the record, Lapeer County formally agrees to collaborate with Tuscola County on meeting 
Materials Management Planning goals set forth by Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy 
(EGLE) agency. Our shared resources and close geographical proximately is mutually 
beneficial in meeting waste management challenges, with a primary focus on recycling. 
Roll Call vote: Howell, aye; Knisely, aye; Mast, aye; Zender, aye; Haggadone, aye; 
Hamilton, aye; Kohlman, absent. 6 ayes, 1 absent. Motion carried. 



Committee of the Whole April 11, 2024 Page 9 of 12 

Motion by Haggadone, supported by Hamilton, pursuant to motion 121-2024 of the March 
28, 2024, Regular Board Meeting, giving the Committee of the Whole the authority to act, 
which shall include forwarding the motion to the next regular meeting to be entered into 
the record, Lapeer County formally agrees to collaborate in a tentative arrangement with 
Sanilac County on meeting Materials Management Planning goals set forth by 
Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) agency. Our shared resources and close 
geographical proximately is mutually beneficial in meeting waste management goals, with 
a primary focus on recycling. Motion carried. 

Motion by Knisely, supported by Haggadone, pursuant to moti.:" · ·21-2024 of the March 
28, 2024, Regular Board Meeting, giving the Committee of t, ale the authority to act, 
which shall include forwarding the motion to the next reg,"'a ting to be entered into 
the record, Lapeer County formally agrees to collaborc$t�1Jfi a tive arrangement with 
Huron County on meeting Materials Managel];l�JH'' Planni oals set forth by 

• 1,:�4'}"'i:,:.'.: •. 

Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) · ncy. Our share ',"'��urces and close 
geographical proximately is mutually beneficial •· eting waste manag'.� ent goals, with 
a primary focus on recycling. Motion carrieq, 

Motion by Hamilton, supported by Zender, purs · 
2024, Regular Board Meeting, giving the Comm, 
which shall include forwarding theli"':*'•·. to the ne 
the record, to adopt the following Re 

WHEREAS, 

on 118-2024 of the March 28, 
e Whole the authority to act, 
lar meeting to be entered into 

· .. §h the safety ",,.•J\�police officers, firefighters and emergency medical service
':t!k'¾'.providers tl'(�t'.�erve our citizens are dependent on the quality and accuracy

<11QL.Jnformgt1§'1:f obtained from citizens who contact Lapeer County Central
l)is· . .J,}jki,

WHEREAS, Lapee. aunty Central Dispatch Public Safety Telecommunicators provide 
the single most vital link for our police officers, firefighters, and emergency 
medical service providers, by monitoring their activities by radio, providing 
them with information, and ensuring their safety; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety Telecommunicators of Lapeer County Central Dispatch 
have assisted in the saving of many lives, the apprehension of criminals, 
and prevention of considerable property loss each year; and, 



Committee of the Whole April 11, 2024 Page 10 of 12 

(Resolution 2024-R04 continued) 

WHEREAS, each member of Lapeer County Central Dispatch has exhibited
compassion, understanding and professionalism during the performance 
as a Public Safety Telecommunicator; and, 

WHEREAS, on October 9, 1991, the Congress of the United States proclaimed the
second week in April as "National Public Safety Telecommunications 
Week." 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners hereby
proclaims the week of April 14 -20, 2024 as PUBLIC SAFETY TEL.ECOMMUNICATORS 
WEEK in Lapeer County, in recognition of the men and worfii"f f'"whose dedication and 
professionalism help keep our county and citizens safe. · , 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Comnjj.s§io��;�-,;u,rges county residents
and public safety responders, to join in honoring Jl;le· staff of tiap�er County Central 
Dispatch in recognition for their continued prof�,��ipnalism and deaic,_i:1_!!.on to the public 
safety of Lapeer County. ,',:,,' · ' · 

( �J�:rfl •••-•.'.;•1•� • 

Roll Call vote: Hamilton, aye; Knisely, aye; Ho@eJI, ay�;-,:;Z¢nder, aye; Hagg�done, aye; 
Mast, aye; Kohlman, absent. 6 ayes, 1 absent. ''iMption':.�irried. 

Motion by Hamilton, supported by Zender, .pursuant to}notion 118-2024 of the March 28, 
2024, Regular Board Meeting, givin'g;Jt,e' C.9)l][Qittee of{he. Whole the authority to act, 
which shall include forwarding the moti?n to the\ri�)(t _regula(!'Deeting to be entered into 
the record, to adopt the following Proclam·ation_:;"-;,/-'-' .. ,·. 

· ,. ·>-/'.\;. PRod���TION . ·. 
HONORING NATIONAL CRINfE VICTIMS' RIGHTS WEEK

-... _'.·,·_,-:s 2024.;;R'0S - ::-��r:· 

WHEREA$/- :the,Jerm ,:�viqti�?;;� �
:"

!��:.\han�t�t a label and has legal standing and· .·-· · protictions· th�tgo along with it; and, 
.• -�·::�r·· . 'V\?,· . � 4[�·\·;�

WHEijEhS, crime vfctirhs' right_s·,a_cts passed here in Michigan and at the federal level 
� ··> guarantee,vi�tims the right to meaningfully participate and use their voice 

; __ i�s in the crimio�.!dustice process; 
'�:::-d.;_�-'· - ·1:---"

:.. __ .. 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

,, . .  -�- ... ,, 

victim service providers, advocates, law enforcement officers, attorneys, 
antf' ''other> allied professionals can help survivors find their justice by 
enforcing these rights; 

the right to provide an impact statement ensures that victims' voices are 
considered in court during the sentencing and, when applicable, restitution 
processes, 

WHEREAS, including and elevating the voices of survivors makes certain they are
heard and seen and creates a path to forging and sustaining community 
trust. 



Committee of the Whole April 11, 2024 Page 11 of 12 

(Resolution 2024-R0S continued) 

WHEREAS, engaging survivors creates responses and services that are credible, 
meaningful, and centered on individual needs; 

WHEREAS, survivors' lived experience can serve as a catalyst for implementing 
innovative programs, shifting existing programs in new directions, and 
changing policies or practices that prevent survivors form accessing 
services or pursuing justice; 

WHEREAS, National Crime Victims' Rights Week provides an
.f.
J>pportunity to recommit 

to listening to crime survivors in every space w·~"'·re decisions are made 
that could impact them, and 

WHEREAS, the Lapeer Count¥ Prosecuting �ttornet(j� r :.�,�.�dicated to _amplifying
the voices of survivors and creating an,.env1ronme'nt;:where survivors have 

hf�y 
''1";.;.�tif.•, the confidence that they will be he ·· W"oelieved, and's. - - orted. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, thij_( ... · apeerCounty Board ci · -.r.nmissioners 
of Lapeer, Michigan, do hereby proclaim the��f. of A .. 1-27th, 2024 liNATIONAL
CRIME VICTIM RIGHTS WEEK reaffirming Lap:,�r C;.,.:) . 's commitment to creating a 
victim service and criminal justice r�&ponse that a·s,�\�11 victims of crime during Crime 
Victim Rights' Week and througho·""-<" ar; and �""- essing our sincere gratitude and 
appreciation for those community m . , ,& , · • tim se - roviders, and criminal justice 
professionals who are committed to itnP£9Vin spo . all victims of crime so that 
they may find relevant assis ance, supp· rt ju 

; Howell, aye; Knisely, aye; Zender, aye; 
Motion carried. 

Motion by Haggado j�,�upp,o._�- ·- 'ursuant to Motion #121-2024 from the 
March 28,�:;;iQlii��gular;l<?lfirMeetl � , .. ,,,, 'the Committee of the Whole the authority
to act on�h'is''mfilter.,;Toand \!P.'ar:suant to the re'commendation of the Properties Committee 

;.t-.Q;7,;,-:-,\..V -;'�� :.<&., �'>f.t,;r, and based upon the:teview �afitegal counsel, to approve the attached lease agreement 
f .�b:;-?,-:7 V-"'4 '":t•�,J-�-betw��.!1 the County of' .. eer agI:Nhe City of Lapeer for the county owned Pavilion at the 

>•,;.c-",•11>' -���-. corne('"· ' . Nepessing , .},Cedar-{$treets, for a period of 5 years with a one- year renewal 
extension. · tion, at the fl'!? of $1/per year, with the understanding that the City will 
undertake se:i!,�f\�I refurbi�,�{i}·ent and restor_ation efforts_(with �apped r_eimb�rsem�nt), and 
pay for any utIhtIes; and:ifi:1rther, to authorize the Chair or V1ce-Cha1r to sign said lease 

t.,.�--;.""'.t-_ f'•�e�-� 

agreement. Motidri·'. · · :"�ct 
�.... ..-

Public Time - Eight people spoke during public time. 

Commissioner Reports 

At this time, the Commissioners had an opportunity to give brief reports on meetings and 
conferences that they have recently attended, as well as upcoming meetings and events, 
along with statements regarding public time comments. 



Committee of the Whole April 11, 2024 Page 12 of 12 

County Controller/Administrator and/or Chief Financial Officer updates 

Moses Sanzo, County Controller/Administrator thanked the commissioners for the City 
Pavilion lease. 

Motion by Haggadone, supported by Hamilton, to adjourn the meeting. 11 :21 a.m. 

Truman Mast, Vice-Chairman 
Committee of the Whole 



Date: May 1, 2024 

REQUEST FOR ACTION 

TO: Lapeer County Board of Commissioners -COW 

From: Henry Horton, Lapeer County Surveyor 

SUMMARY OF REQUEST/ INFORMATION 

G 

Requesting approval of the FY 2024 Remonumentation Grant Agreements for 
surveying services with the following: Davis Land Surveying and Engineering; RA 
Outhier Land Surveyor, LLC; and Kennedy Surveying, Inc; as well as the Peer 
Review Group agreements with Steve Thompson, P.S. and Ray Davis, P.S. 

Background Information: These agreements are approved annually. 

Contact Person (s): Henry Horton, Lapeer County Surveyor 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Remonumentation Grant Agreements (3) and 
Peer Review Agreements (2) 

DRAFT MOTION: 

Motion by _______ , supported by ________ , to approve the 
attached FY 2024 Remonumentation grant agreements for surveying services 
between the County of Lapeer and Davis Land Surveying and Engineering; RA 
Outhier Land Surveyor, LLC; and Kennedy Surveying, Inc; as well as the Peer 
Review Group agreements with Steve Thompson, P.S. and Ray Davis, P.S; and 
further, to authorize the Lapeer County Grant Administrator (Chief Financial 
Officer) to sign said agreements. 

ATTACHMENTS: X YES NO 



2024 GRANT AGREEMENT 

This agreement is entered into by: 

LAPEER COUNTY 

255 CLAY ST, 
LAPEER, MICHIGAN 48446 

and 
DA VIS LAND SURVEYING AND ENGINEERING 

415 W. NEPESSING ST. 
LAPEER, MI 48446 

Terms and conditions are as follows: 

DEFINITIONS 

1. The term Grantor shall mean Lapeer County and the State of Michigan.

2. The term Grantee shall mean the Monumentation Surveyor ( or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by it).

3. The term Peer Group shall mean a committee of professional surveyors whose duty is to
review all data on government comers and determine their correct locations.

TERMS 

The Grantor intends to secure the surveying services as outlined in Exhibit A as attached. The 
standard of care for all surveying services furnished by the surveyor under the agreement will be 
the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the Grantee's profession under similar 
conditions at the same time and in the same locality. The Grantee shall provide and maintain 
public liability, property damage, and workers' compensation insurance while working for the 
Grantor. The insurance shall cover interests of all parties to this agreement, and all claims which 
may arise out of the Grantee's operations under this agreement. Certificate of Insurance with 
"Lapeer County" identified as Certificate Holder is required to be provided prior to 
commencement of work under this contract. 

The Grantee is responsible for ensuring that precautions are always exercised for the protection 
of persons and property. The safety provision of all applicable laws and building and 
construction codes shall be observed. The Grantee is responsible for compliance with all federal 
and state laws and municipal ordinances and regulations in any manner affecting the work 
performance of the agreement and shall always carefully observe and comply with all rules, 
ordinances, and regulations. The Grantee shall secure all necessary certificates and permits from 
municipal or other public authorities as may be required in connection with the performance of 
work covered by this agreement. 

Page 1 of5 



The Grantee agrees to comply with the following indemnification clause: 

TO THE EXTENT THAT LIABILITIES, OBLIGATIONS, DAMAGES, CLAIMS COSTS, 
CHARGES AND EXPENSES ARE CAUSED BY ANY NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR, OR 
OMISSION BY THE MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR OR (ANYONE DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY IT) ARISING FROM THE SERVICES RENDERED BY THE 
MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR, THE MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR AGREES TO 
HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY LAPEER COUNTY AND THE STATE OF 
MICHIGAN (AND ITS AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES ) FROM AND AGAINST SAID 
LIABILITIES, OBLIGATIONS, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, COSTS, CHARGES AND 
EXPENSES IMPOSED UPON THE GRANTEE. 

The Grantor, or the Grantee, may terminate this agreement at any time in whole or in part by 
delivery of a Notice of Termination to the other party. Termination may be initiated due to 
funding reductions, the elimination of funds, or if the project in whole or part is no longer 
required because of identified efficiencies and/or economies. The Grantee shall be compensated 
for the State's share of all expenditures authorized by the grant budget incurred prior to the date 
of the Notice of Termination and for those financial obligations or purchase orders authorized by 
the grant budget that cannot be cancelled. In addition, this agreement can be terminated by the 
Grantor if the Grantee fails to comply with any of the provisions of this agreement. 

Nothing in this agreement can be assigned by either party without the written approval and 
consent of the other party. 

No member of the Legislature of the State of Michigan or any individual employed by the state 
shall be permitted to share in this agreement of any benefit that arises from it. 

CONDITIONS FOR PAYMENT OF WORK: 

This agreement requires that all survey work be performed in accordance with Act 345 of Public 
Acts of 1990 as amended, being Section 54.261 to 54.279 of the Michigan Compiled Laws and 
the County Plan as adopted by the State Survey Commission. From time to time the Peer Group 
will outline a specific procedure to recover or replace a government comer. It is required that its 
instructions be followed to the best of the Grantee's ability. 

The County Surveyor will assign the government comer(s) to be installed by the Grantee. 

The Grantee shall install the appropriate comer marker cap and shall file a Land Comer 
Recordation Certificate as required on the form provided with the 2024 Grant. One recordable 
copy of said Certificate shall be given to the Remonumentation Grant Administrator together 
with a statement for payment of work. Said statement shall be in accordance with the schedule 
of fees and charges approved by the Lapeer County Grant Administrator. Upon approval of the 
Lapeer County Grant Administrator, payment will be made. 

ACCEPTANCE 

Page 2 of5 



Lapeer County and the Grantee, by signature below, acknowledge that they have read this 
agreement, understand it, and agree to all its terms and conditions. Execution of this agreement 
shall constitute a notice to proceed. 

Accepted Accepted 

LAPEER COUNTY SURVEYOR 

By _ __ __ _ ___ _ 

Jackie Arnold Gil Bonno, P.S. 

Title: Lapeer County Grant Administrator 

Witness ------- - - - --

Date Date 

Page 3 of5 



EXHIBIT "A" OF 2024 GRANT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
LAPEER COUNTY AND DA VIS LAND SURVEYING & ENGINEERING 

Dated 1/ / 3 o / 2o 2.-/ 
ASSIGNMENT 

I 

A. Perform research, field investigation, uncover or locate corner evidence and witnesses (find
or establish.)
B. Assemble all information into a comer dossier file with a cover sheet listing all potential
sources with a chronological listing of reference material found.
C. Submit the dossier (one copy) with four copies of the cover sheet to the County Surveyor not
less than two weeks prior to the Peer Group Meeting. Each dossier must be bound in a manila
folder that is clearly labeled and bound with a two-hole binder.
D. Attach a list to the dossier of any and all surveyors that the monumentation surveyor believes
have any conflicts with the position the monumentation surveyor is recommending.
E. All original field notes used in determining and placing said corners shall be included in the
dossier prior to payment approval.
F. Attend Peer Group Meeting and present evidence found. Sufficient evidence must be
presented to the Peer Group of the location of the government corners for their approval. Make
recommendation for corner position. All evidence must be in the form as attached in exhibit "B"
of this contract.
G. Following ratification of corner position, place approved monument at that location and
record a Land Corner Recordation Form with the Register of Deeds office. Said corner
recordation shall be identified at the top of the form with the word "Remonumentation" and have
the same presentation as the one attached in exhibit "C" of this contract.
H. Ties to all adjacent remonumented corners or corners under contract shall be shown
on the Act 7 4 Form.
I. All quarter corners may include a witness tie to adjacent apparent centers of section,
evidenced by occupation or monumentation in sections which are being closed.
J. An approved file folder with all comer data included and bound in said folder shall be
submitted to the County Surveyor at the completion of all work.
K. Six (6) color photographs shall be included in the dossier. One of what was in place, one of
the new monument, and the four cardinal directions of the site.
L. A sketch shall be included on the recording document with all adjacent recorded
contract corners shown.
M. Latitude and Longitude shall be recorded on the form to the standards set by the Office of
Land Survey and Remonumentation.
N. All points that fall within a hard surface roadway must be placed in a monument box
(provided) Use a core diameter no greater than l" larger than the largest diameter of the
monument box. Grout the monument box in place using non-shrink grout to the full depth. Do
not place grout in the monument box. Install monument boxes so neither the box nor the cover
extends above the pavement surface. Cost of placement of the box is the responsibility of the
contractor.

Page 4 of 5 



0. All land corners that fall off from the roadway must be a concrete monument of not less than
4" in diameter and 36" in length with a 1/2" by 36" iron rod in the center and have an approved
Lapeer County Remonumentation Cap and be set to a depth of not less than 2.5 feet. Exceptions
will be made where this is not practical. Standard County labeled Carsonite Post shall also be
placed at the off-road corner location. These will be provided, if available.

Closing corners not falling on the township line shall be monumented on the township line and 
the historical corner shall also be monumented. Both positions shall be reported on the same 
LCRC form. 

This contract is for the following 12 corners: 
RICH TWP, TlON-RlOE
G7, G8, G9, Gl0, Gl 1 & G12 
H7, H8, H9, HlO, Hl 1 & H12 

TOTAL COMPENSATION FOR THIS CONTRACT IS $16,800.00 
RESEARCH $5,040.00 
MONUMENTATION $11,760.00 

PEER GROUP ATTENDANCE WHILE PRESENTING YOUR CONTRACT CORNERS IS 
INCLUDED IN THE PRICE PER CORNER. ADDITIONAL PEER GROUP 
PARTICIPATION WILL BE COMPENSATED AT $150 PER MEETING AS LONG AS 
FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE. 

PERIOD OF SERVICE 
All work under this contract shall be completed by October 31, 2024. The Peer Group 

will meet periodically as sufficient corners are submitted to warrant a review meeting; however, 
all dossiers shall be submitted no later than September 20, 2024. 

Page 5 of5 



2024 GRANT AGREEMENT 

This agreement is entered into by: 

LAPEER COUNTY 

255 CLAY ST, 
LAPEER, MICHIGAN 48446 

and 
DA VIS LAND SURVEYING AND ENGINEERING 

415 W. NEPESSING ST. 
LAPEER, MI 48446 

Terms and conditions are as follows: 

DEFINITIONS 

1. The term Grantor shall mean Lapeer County and the State of Michigan.

2. The term Grantee shall mean the Monumentation Surveyor ( or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by it).

3. The term Peer Group shall mean a committee of professional surveyors whose duty is to
review all data on government corners and determine their correct locations.

TERMS 

The Grantor intends to secure the surveying services as outlined in Exhibit A as attached. The 
standard of care for all surveying services furnished by the surveyor under the agreement will be 
the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the Grantee's profession under similar 
conditions at the same time and in the same locality. The Grantee shall provide and maintain 
public liability, property damage, and workers' compensation insurance while working for the 
Grantor. The insurance shall cover interests of all parties to this agreement, and all claims which 
may arise out of the Grantee's operations under this agreement. Certificate of Insurance with 
"Lapeer County" identified as Certificate Holder is required to be provided prior to 
commencement of work under this contract. 

The Grantee is responsible for ensuring that precautions are always exercised for the protection 
of persons and property. The safety provision of all applicable laws and building and 
construction codes shall be observed. The Grantee is responsible for compliance with all federal 
and state laws and municipal ordinances and regulations in any manner affecting the work 
performance of the agreement and shall always carefully observe and comply with all rules, 
ordinances, and regulations. The Grantee shall secure all necessary certificates and permits from 
municipal or other public authorities as may be required in connection with the performance of 
work covered by this agreement. 

Page 1 of 5 



The Grantee agrees to comply with the following indemnification clause: 

TO THE EXTENT THAT LIABILITIES, OBLIGATIONS, DAMAGES, CLAIMS COSTS, 
CHARGES AND EXPENSES ARE CAUSED BY ANY NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR, OR 
OMISSION BY THE MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR OR (ANYONE DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY IT) ARISING FROM THE SERVICES RENDERED BY THE 
MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR, THE MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR AGREES TO 
HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY LAPEER COUNTY AND THE STATE OF 
MICHIGAN (AND ITS AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES ) FROM AND AGAINST SAID 
LIABILITIES, OBLIGATIONS, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, COSTS, CHARGES AND 
EXPENSES IMPOSED UPON THE GRANTEE. 

The Grantor, or the Grantee, may terminate this agreement at any time in whole or in part by 
delivery of a Notice of Termination to the other party. Termination may be initiated due to 
funding reductions, the elimination of funds, or if the project in whole or part is no longer 
required because of identified efficiencies and/or economies. The Grantee shall be compensated 
for the State's share of all expenditures authorized by the grant budget incurred prior to the date 
of the Notice of Termination and for those financial obligations or purchase orders authorized by 
the grant budget that cannot be cancelled. In addition, this agreement can be terminated by the 
Grantor if the Grantee fails to comply with any of the provisions of this agreement. 

Nothing in this agreement can be assigned by either party without the written approval and 
consent of the other party. 

No member of the Legislature of the State of Michigan or any individual employed by the state 
shall be permitted to share in this agreement of any benefit that arises from it. 

CONDITIONS FOR PAYMENT OF WORK: 

This agreement requires that all survey work be performed in accordance with Act 345 of Public 
Acts of 1990 as amended, being Section 54.261 to 54.279 of the Michigan Compiled Laws and 
the County Plan as adopted by the State Survey Commission. From time to time the Peer Group 
will outline a specific procedure to recover or replace a government comer. It is required that its 
instructions be followed to the best of the Grantee's ability. 

The County Surveyor will assign the government comer(s) to be installed by the Grantee. 

The Grantee shall install the appropriate comer marker cap and shall file a Land Comer 
Recordation Certificate as required on the form provided with the 2024 Grant. One recordable 
copy of said Certificate shall be given to the Remonumentation Grant Administrator together 
with a statement for payment of work. Said statement shall be in accordance with the schedule 
of fees and charges approved by the Lapeer County Grant Administrator. Upon approval of the 
Lapeer County Grant Administrator, payment will be made. 

ACCEPTANCE 

Page 2 of5 



Lapeer County and the Grantee, by signature below, acknowledge that they have read this 
agreement, understand it, and agree to all its terms and conditions. Execution of this agreement 
shall constitute a notice to proceed. 

Accepted 

LAPEER COUNTY 

By ___________ _ 

Jackie Arnold 

Title: Lapeer County Grant Administrator 

Witness 
------------

Date 

Accepted 

SURVEYOR 

By��

Gil Bonno, P.S. 

Title .S� 'ii!- Veft r:?; e.,..,...r:::"'d:/" o �

Witness 6--0� 
Date 

Page 3 of 5 



EXHIBIT "A" OF 2024 GRANT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
LAPEER COUNTY AND DA VIS LAND SURVEYING & ENGINEERING 

Dated S,1 f 3o (z.=:z(
ASSIGNMENT 
A. Perform research, field investigation, uncover or locate corner evidence and witnesses (find
or establish.)
B. Assemble all information into a corner dossier file with a cover sheet listing all potential
sources with a chronological listing of reference material found.
C. Submit the dossier (one copy) with four copies of the cover sheet to the County Surveyor not
less than two weeks prior to the Peer Group Meeting. Each dossier must be bound in a manila
folder that is clearly labeled and bound with a two-hole binder.
D. Attach a list to the dossier of any and all surveyors that the monumentation surveyor believes
have any conflicts with the position the monumentation surveyor is recommending.
E. All original field notes used in determining and placing said corners shall be included in the
dossier prior to payment approval.
F. Attend Peer Group Meeting and present evidence found. Sufficient evidence must be
presented to the Peer Group of the location of the government comers for their approval. Make
recommendation for comer position. All evidence must be in the form as attached in exhibit "B"
of this contract.
G. Following ratification of comer position, place approved monument at that location and
record a Land Comer Recordation Form with the Register of Deeds office. Said comer
recordation shall be identified at the top of the form with the word "Remonumentation" and have
the same presentation as the one attached in exhibit "C" of this contract.
H. Ties to all adjacent remonumented corners or comers under contract shall be shown
on the Act 74 Form.
I. All quarter comers may include a witness tie to adjacent apparent centers of section,
evidenced by occupation or monumentation in sections which are being closed.
J. An approved file folder with all comer data included and bound in said folder shall be
submitted to the County Surveyor at the completion of all work.
K. Six ( 6) color photographs shall be included in the dossier. One of what was in place, one of
the new monument, and the four cardinal directions of the site.
L. A sketch shall be included on the recording document with all adjacent recorded
contract comers shown.
M. Latitude and Longitude shall be recorded on the form to the standards set by the Office of
Land Survey and Remonumentation.
N. All points that fall within a hard surface roadway must be placed in a monument box
(provided) Use a core diameter no greater than 1" larger than the largest diameter of the
monument box. Grout the monument box in place using non-shrink grout to the full depth. Do
not place grout in the monument box. Install monument boxes so neither the box nor the cover
extends above the pavement surface. Cost of placement of the box is the responsibility of the
contractor.

Page 4 of 5 



0. All land corners that fall off from the roadway must be a concrete monument of not less than
4" in diameter and 36" in length with a 1/2" by 36" iron rod in the center and have an approved
Lapeer County Remonumentation Cap and be set to a depth of not less than 2.5 feet. Exceptions
will be made where this is not practical. Standard County labeled Carsonite Post shall also be
placed at the off-road corner location. These will be provided, if available.

Closing corners not falling on the township line shall be monumented on the township line and 
the historical corner shall also be monumented. Both positions shall be reported on the same 
LCRC form. 

This contract is for the following 12 corners: 
RICH TWP, TlON-RlOE
G7, G8, G9, Gl0, Gll & G12 
H7, H8, H9, Hl0, Hl 1 & H12 

TOTAL COMPENSATION FOR THIS CONTRACT IS $16,800.00 
RESEARCH $5,040.00 
MONUMENTATION $11,760.00 

PEER GROUP ATTENDANCE WHILE PRESENTING YOUR CONTRACT CORNERS IS 
INCLUDED IN THE PRICE PER CORNER. ADDITIONAL PEER GROUP 
PARTICIPATION WILL BE COMPENSATED AT $150 PER MEETING AS LONG AS 
FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE. 

PERIOD OF SERVICE 
All work under this contract shall be completed by October 31, 2024. The Peer Group 

will meet periodically as sufficient corners are submitted to warrant a review meeting; however, 
all dossiers shall be submitted no later than September 20, 2024. 

Page 5 of5 



2024 GRANT AGREEMENT 

This agreement is entered into by: 

LAPEER COUNTY 

255 CLAY ST, 
LAPEER, MICHIGAN 48446 

and 

R.A. DUTHLER LAND SURVEYOR, LLC 

158 E. THIRD STREET 

IMLAY CITY, MI 48444 

Terms and conditions are as follows: 

DEFINITIONS 

1. The term Grantor shall mean Lapeer County and the State of Michigan.

2. The term Grantee shall mean the Monumentation Surveyor ( or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by it).

3. The term Peer Group shall mean a committee of professional surveyors whose duty is to 
review all data on government corners and determine their correct locations.

TERMS 

The Grantor intends to secure the surveying services as outlined in Exhibit A as attached. The 
standard of care for all surveying services furnished by the surveyor under the agreement will be 
the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the Grantee's profession under similar 
conditions at the same time and in the same locality. The Grantee shall provide and maintain 
public liability, property damage, and workers' compensation insurance while working for the 

Grantor. The insurance shall cover interests of all parties to this agreement, and all claims which 
may arise out of the Grantee's operations under this agreement. Certificate of Insurance with 

"Lapeer County" identified as Certificate Holder is required to be provided prior to 
commencement of work under this contract. 

The Grantee is responsible for ensuring that precautions are exercised at all times for the 

protection of persons and property. The safety provision of all applicable laws and building and 

construction codes shall be observed. The Grantee is responsible for compliance with all federal 
and state laws and municipal ordinances and regulations in any manner affecting the work 
performance of the agreement and shall always carefully observe and comply with all rules, 

ordinances, and regulations. The Grantee shall secure all necessary certificates and permits from 
municipal or other public authorities as may be required in connection with the performance of 

Page 1 of 5 



work covered by this agreement. 

The Grantee agrees to comply with the following indemnification clause: 

TO THE EXTENT THAT LIABILITIES, OBLIGATIONS, DAMAGES, CLAIMS COSTS, 
CHARGES AND EXPENSES ARE CAUSED BY ANY NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR, OR 
OMISSION BY THE MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR OR (ANYONE DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY IT) ARISING FROM THE SERVICES RENDERED BY THE 
MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR, THE MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR AGREES TO 
HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY LAPEER COUNTY AND THE STATE OF 
MICHIGAN (AND ITS AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES ) FROM AND AGAINST SAID 
LIABILITIES, OBLIGATIONS, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, COSTS, CHARGES AND 
EXPENSES IMPOSED UPON THE GRANTEE. 

The Grantor, or the Grantee, may terminate this agreement at any time in whole or in part by 
delivery of a Notice of Termination to the other party. Termination may be initiated due to 
funding reductions, the elimination of funds, or if the project in whole or part is no longer 
required because of identified efficiencies and/or economies. The Grantee shall be compensated 
for the State's share of all expenditures authorized by the grant budget incurred prior to the date 
of the Notice of Termination and for those financial obligations or purchase orders authorized by 
the grant budget that cannot be cancelled. In addition, this agreement can be terminated by the 
Grantor if the Grantee fails to comply with any of the provisions of this agreement. 

Nothing in this agreement can be assigned by either party without the written approval and 
consent of the other party. 

No member of the Legislature of the State of Michigan or any individual employed by the state 
shall be permitted to share in this agreement of any benefit that arises from it. 

CONDITIONS FOR PAYMENT OF WORK: 

This agreement requires that all survey work be performed in accordance with Act 345 of Public 
Acts of 1990 as amended, being Section 54.261 to 54.279 of the Michigan Compiled Laws and 
the County Plan as adopted by the State Survey Commission. From time to time the Peer Group 
will outline a specific procedure to recover or replace a government comer. It is required that its 
instructions be followed to the best of the Grantee's ability. 

The County Surveyor will assign the government comer(s) to be installed by the Grantee. 

The Grantee shall install the appropriate comer marker cap and shall file a Land Comer 
Recordation Certificate as required on the form provided with the 2024 Grant. One recordable 
copy of said Certificate shall be given to the Remonumentation Grant Administrator together 
with a statement for payment of work. Said statement shall be in accordance with the schedule 
of fees and charges approved by the Lapeer County Grant Administrator. Upon approval of the 
Lapeer County Grant Administrator, payment will be made. 

Page 2 of5 



ACCEPTANCE 
Lapeer County and the Grantee, by signature below, acknowledge that they have read this 
agreement, understand it, and agree to all its terms and conditions. Execution of this agreement 
shall constitute a notice to proceed. 

Accepted Accepted 

LAPEER COUNTY SURVEYOR 

By ___________ _ 

Jackie Arnold Richard Duthler, P.S. 

Date Date 

Page 3 of5 

7 7 



Dated 

EXHIBIT "A" OF 2024 GRANT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
LAPEER COUNTY AND R.A. DUTHLER LAND SURVEYOR, LLC 

5/i/zo3/ 
ASSIGNMENT 
A. Perform research, field investigation, uncover or locate comer evidence and witnesses (find
or establish.)
B. Assemble all information into a comer dossier file with a cover sheet listing all potential
sources with a chronological listing of reference material found.
C. Submit the dossier (one copy) with four copies of the cover sheet to the County Surveyor not
less than two weeks prior to the Peer Group Meeting. Each dossier must be bound in a manila
folder that is clearly labeled and bound with a two-hole binder.
D. Attach a list to the dossier of any and all surveyors that the monumentation surveyor believes
have any conflicts with the position the monumentation surveyor is recommending.
E. All original field notes used in determining and placing said comers shall be included in the
dossier prior to payment approval.
F. Attend Peer Group Meeting and present evidence found. Sufficient evidence must be
presented to the Peer Group of the location of the government comers for their approval. Make
recommendation for comer position. All evidence must be in the form as attached in exhibit "B"
of this contract.
G. Following ratification of comer position, place approved monument at that location and
record a Land Comer Recordation Form with the Register of Deeds office. Said comer
recordation shall be identified at the top of the form with the word "Remonumentation" and have
the same presentation as the one attached in exhibit "C" of this contract.
H. Ties to all adjacent remonumented comers or comers under contract shall be shown
on the Act 74 Form.
I. All quarter comers may include a witness tie to adjacent apparent centers of section,

evidenced by occupation or monumentation in sections which are being closed.
J. An approved file folder with all comer data included and bound in said folder shall be

submitted to the County Surveyor at the completion of all work.
K. Six ( 6) color photographs shall be included in the dossier. One of the found item, one of the
new monument, and the four cardinal directions of the site.
L. A sketch shall be included on the recording document with all adjacent recorded
contract comers shown.
M. Latitude and Longitude shall be recorded on the form to the standards set by the Office of
Land Survey and Remonumentation.
N. All points that fall within a hard surface roadway must be placed in a monument box
(provided) Use a core diameter no greater than I" larger than the largest diameter of the
monument box. Grout the monument box in place using non-shrink grout to the full depth. Do
not place grout in the monument box. Install monument boxes so neither the box nor the cover
extends above the pavement surface. Cost of placement of the box is the responsibility of the
contractor.

Page 4 of 5 



0. All land corners that fall off from the roadway must be a concrete monument of not less than
4" in diameter and 36" in length with a 1/2" by 36" iron rod in the center and have an approved
Lapeer County Remonumentation Cap and be set to a depth of not less than 2.5 feet. Exceptions
will be made where this is not practical. Standard County labeled Carsonite Post shall also be
placed at the off-road corner location. These will be provided, if available.

Closing corners not falling on the township line shall be monumented on the township line and 
the historical corner shall also be monumented. Both positions shall be reported on the same 
LCRC form. 

THIS CONTRACT IS FOR THE FOLLOWING 12 CORNERS: 

BURNSIDE TWP (NORTH PART), T10N-R12E 
Gll 
l07, l08, l09, 110 & 111 
J7, J8, 19, Jl0, J l  l & J12 

TOTAL COMPENSATION FOR THIS CONTRACT IS $16,800.00 
RESEARCH $5,040.00 
MONUMENTATION $11,760.00 

PEER GROUP ATTENDANCE WHILE PRESENTING YOUR CONTRACT CORNERS IS 
INCLUDED IN THE PRICE PER CORNER. ADDITIONAL PEER GROUP 
PARTICIPATION WILL BE COMPENSATED AT $150 PER MEETING AS LONG AS 
FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE. 

PERIOD OF SERVICE 
All work under this contract shall be completed by October 31, 2024. The Peer Group 

will meet periodically as sufficient corners are submitted to warrant a review meeting; however, 
all dossiers shall be submitted no later than September 20, 2024. 

Page 5 of5 



2024 GRANT AGREEMENT 

This agreement is entered into by: 

LAPEER COUNTY 

255 CLAY ST, 
LAPEER, MICHIGAN 48446 

and 

R.A. DUTHLER LAND SURVEYOR, LLC 

158 E. THIRD STREET 
IMLAY CITY, MI 48444 

Terms and conditions are as follows: 

DEFINITIONS 

1. The term Grantor shall mean Lapeer County and the State of Michigan.

2. The term Grantee shall mean the Monumentation Surveyor ( or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by it).

3. The term Peer Group shall mean a committee of professional surveyors whose duty is to
review all data on government corners and determine their correct locations.

TERMS 

The Grantor intends to secure the surveying services as outlined in Exhibit A as attached. The 
standard of care for all surveying services furnished by the surveyor under the agreement will be 
the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the Grantee's profession under similar 
conditions at the same time and in the same locality. The Grantee shall provide and maintain 
public liability, property damage, and workers' compensation insurance while working for the 
Grantor. The insurance shall cover interests of all parties to this agreement, and all claims which 
may arise out of the Grantee's operations under this agreement. Certificate of Insurance with 
"Lapeer County" identified as Certificate Holder is required to be provided prior to 
commencement of work under this contract. 

The Grantee is responsible for ensuring that precautions are exercised at all times for the 
protection of persons and property. The safety provision of all applicable laws and building and 
construction codes shall be observed. The Grantee is responsible for compliance with all federal 
and state laws and municipal ordinances and regulations in any manner affecting the work 
performance of the agreement and shall always carefully observe and comply with all rules, 
ordinances, and regulations. The Grantee shall secure all necessary certificates and permits from 
municipal or other public authorities as may be required in connection with the performance of 

Page 1 of5 



work covered by this agreement. 

The Grantee agrees to comply with the following indemnification clause: 

TO THE EXTENT THAT LIABILITIES, OBLIGATIONS, DAMAGES, CLAIMS COSTS, 
CHARGES AND EXPENSES ARE CAUSED BY ANY NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR, OR 
OMISSION BY THE MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR OR (ANYONE DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY IT) ARISING FROM THE SERVICES RENDERED BY THE 
MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR, THE MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR AGREES TO 
HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY LAPEER COUNTY AND THE STATE OF 
MICHIGAN (AND ITS AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES ) FROM AND AGAINST SAID 
LIABILITIES, OBLIGATIONS, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, COSTS, CHARGES AND 
EXPENSES IMPOSED UPON THE GRANTEE. 

The Grantor, or the Grantee, may terminate this agreement at any time in whole or in part by 
delivery of a Notice of Termination to the other party. Termination may be initiated due to 
funding reductions, the elimination of funds, or if the project in whole or part is no longer 
required because of identified efficiencies and/or economies. The Grantee shall be compensated 
for the State's share of all expenditures authorized by the grant budget incurred prior to the date 
of the Notice of Termination and for those financial obligations or purchase orders authorized by 
the grant budget that cannot be cancelled. In addition, this agreement can be terminated by the 
Grantor if the Grantee fails to comply with any of the provisions of this agreement. 

Nothing in this agreement can be assigned by either party without the written approval and 
consent of the other party. 

No member of the Legislature of the State of Michigan or any individual employed by the state 
shall be permitted to share in this agreement of any benefit that arises from it. 

CONDITIONS FOR PAYMENT OF WORK: 

This agreement requires that all survey work be performed in accordance with Act 345 of Public 
Acts of 1990 as amended, being Section 54.261 to 54.279 of the Michigan Compiled Laws and 
the County Plan as adopted by the State Survey Commission. From time to time the Peer Group 
will outline a specific procedure to recover or replace a government comer. It is required that its 
instructions be followed to the best of the Grantee's ability. 

The County Surveyor will assign the government comer(s) to be installed by the Grantee. 

The Grantee shall install the appropriate corner marker cap and shall file a Land Corner 
Recordation Certificate as required on the form provided with the 2024 Grant. One recordable 
copy of said Certificate shall be given to the Remonumentation Grant Administrator together 
with a statement for payment of work. Said statement shall be in accordance with the schedule 
of fees and charges approved by the Lapeer County Grant Administrator. Upon approval of the 
Lapeer County Grant Administrator, payment will be made. 

Page 2 of5 



ACCEPTANCE 
Lapeer County and the Grantee, by signature below, acknowledge that they have read this 
agreement, understand it, and agree to all its terms and conditions. Execution of this agreement 
shall constitute a notice to proceed. 

Accepted Accepted 

LAPEER COUNTY 

By ___________ _ 

SURVEYW_/ __ 

By ________ _ _ _ _ _ __ 

Jackie Arnold Richard Duthler, P.S. 

Title: Lapeer County Grant Administrator Title ___ A_c._::::_,,.,,,_,3_· -�-· _ _ _ ___ _ 

Witness 
------------

Date Date 

Page 3 of 5 



Dated 

EXHIBIT "A" OF 2024 GRANT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
LAPEER COUNTY AND R.A. DUTHLER LAND SURVEYOR, LLC 

s:-/;/zoz/ 
7 J 7 

ASSIGNMENT 
A. Perform research, field investigation, uncover or locate comer evidence and witnesses (find
or establish.)
B. Assemble all information into a comer dossier file with a cover sheet listing all potential
sources with a chronological listing of reference material found.
C. Submit the dossier (one copy) with four copies of the cover sheet to the County Surveyor not
less than two weeks prior to the Peer Group Meeting. Each dossier must be bound in a manila
folder that is clearly labeled and bound with a two-hole binder.
D. Attach a list to the dossier of any and all surveyors that the monumentation surveyor believes
have any conflicts with the position the monumentation surveyor is recommending.
E. All original field notes used in determining and placing said comers shall be included in the
dossier prior to payment approval.
F. Attend Peer Group Meeting and present evidence found. Sufficient evidence must be
presented to the Peer Group of the location of the government comers for their approval. Make
recommendation for corner position. All evidence must be in the form as attached in exhibit "B"
of this contract.
G. Following ratification of corner position, place approved monument at that location and
record a Land Comer Recordation Form with the Register of Deeds office. Said corner
recordation shall be identified at the top of the form with the word "Remonumentation" and have
the same presentation as the one attached in exhibit "C" of this contract.
H. Ties to all adjacent remonumented corners or corners under contract shall be shown
on the Act 74 Form.
I. All quarter comers may include a witness tie to adjacent apparent centers of section,
evidenced by occupation or monumentation in sections which are being closed.
J. An approved file folder with all corner data included and bound in said folder shall be
submitted to the County Surveyor at the completion of all work.
K. Six ( 6) color photographs shall be included in the dossier. One of the found item, one of the
new monument, and the four cardinal directions of the site.
L. A sketch shall be included on the recording document with all adjacent recorded
contract corners shown.
M. Latitude and Longitude shall be recorded on the form to the standards set by the Office of
Land Survey and Remonumentation.
N. All points that fall within a hard surface roadway must be placed in a monument box
(provided) Use a core diameter no greater than 1" larger than the largest diameter of the
monument box. Grout the monument box in place using non-shrink grout to the full depth. Do
not place grout in the monument box. Install monument boxes so neither the box nor the cover
extends above the pavement surface. Cost of placement of the box is the responsibility of the
contractor.

Page 4 of 5 



0. All land comers that fall off from the roadway must be a concrete monument of not less than
4" in diameter and 36" in length with a 1/2" by 36" iron rod in the center and have an approved
Lapeer County Remonumentation Cap and be set to a depth of not less than 2.5 feet. Exceptions
will be made where this is not practical. Standard County labeled Carsonite Post shall also be
placed at the off-road comer location. These will be provided, if available.

Closing comers not falling on the township line shall be monumented on the township line and 
the historical corner shall also be monumented. Both positions shall be reported on the same 
LCRC form. 

THIS CONTRACT IS FOR THE FOLLOWING 12 CORNERS: 

BURNSIDE TWP (NORTH PART), TlON-R12E 
Gl 1 
I07, I08, I09, 110 & 111 
J7, 18, 19,110,111 & 112 

TOTAL COMPENSATION FOR THIS CONTRACT IS $16,800.00 
RESEARCH $5,040.00 
MONUMENTATION $11,760.00 

PEER GROUP ATTENDANCE WHILE PRESENTING YOUR CONTRACT CORNERS IS 
INCLUDED IN THE PRICE PER CORNER. ADDITIONAL PEER GROUP 
PARTICIPATION WILL BE COMPENSATED AT $150 PER MEETING AS LONG AS 
FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE. 

PERIOD OF SERVICE 
All work under this contract shall be completed by October 31, 2024. The Peer Group 

will meet periodically as sufficient corners are submitted to warrant a review meeting; however, 
all dossiers shall be submitted no later than September 20, 2024. 

Page 5 of5 



2024 GRANT AGREEMENT 

This agreement is entered into by: 

LAPEER COUNTY 

255 CLAY ST, 
LAPEER, MICHIGAN 48446 

and 
KENNEDY SURVEYING, INC. 

105 N. WASHING TON ST. 
OXFORD, MI 48371 

Terms and conditions are as follows: 

DEFINITIONS 

1. The term Grantor shall mean Lapeer County and the State of Michigan.

2. The term Grantee shall mean the Monumentation Surveyor ( or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by it).

3. The term Peer Group shall mean a committee of professional surveyors whose duty is to
review all data on government comers and determine their correct locations.

TERMS 

The Grantor intends to secure the surveying services as outlined in Exhibit A as attached. The 
standard of care for all surveying services furnished by the surveyor under the agreement will be 
the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the Grantee's profession under similar 
conditions at the same time and in the same locality. The Grantee shall provide and maintain 
public liability, property damage, and workers' compensation insurance while working for the 
Grantor. The insurance shall cover interests of all parties to this agreement, and all claims which 
may arise out of the Grantee's operations under this agreement. Certificate oflnsurance with 
"Lapeer County" identified as Certificate Holder is required to be provided prior to 
commencement of work under this contract. 

The Grantee is responsible for ensuring that precautions are exercised at all times for the 
protection of persons and property. The safety provision of all applicable laws and building and 
construction codes shall be observed. The Grantee is responsible for compliance with all federal 
and state laws and municipal ordinances and regulations in any manner affecting the work 
performance of the agreement and shall always carefully observe and comply with all rules, 
ordinances, and regulations. The Grantee shall secure all necessary certificates and permits from 
municipal or other public authorities as may be required in connection with the performance of 
work covered by this agreement. 

Page 1 of 5 



The Grantee agrees to comply with the following indemnification clause: 

TO THE EXTENT THAT LIABILITIES, OBLIGATIONS, DAMAGES, CLAIMS COSTS, 
CHARGES AND EXPENSES ARE CAUSED BY ANY NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR, OR 
OMISSION BY THE MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR OR (ANYONE DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY IT) ARISING FROM THE SERVICES RENDERED BY THE 
MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR, THE MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR AGREES TO 
HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY LAPEER COUNTY AND THE STATE OF 
MICHIGAN (AND ITS AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES ) FROM AND AGAINST SAID 
LIABILITIES, OBLIGATIONS, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, COSTS, CHARGES AND 
EXPENSES IMPOSED UPON THE GRANTEE. 

The Grantor, or the Grantee, may terminate this agreement at any time in whole or in part by 
delivery of a Notice of Termination to the other party. Termination may be initiated due to 
funding reductions, the elimination of funds, or if the project in whole or part is no longer 
required because of identified efficiencies and/or economies. The Grantee shall be compensated 
for the State's share of all expenditures authorized by the grant budget incurred prior to the date 
of the Notice of Termination and for those financial obligations or purchase orders authorized by 
the grant budget that cannot be cancelled. In addition, this agreement can be terminated by the 
Grantor if the Grantee fails to comply with any of the provisions of this agreement. 

Nothing in this agreement can be assigned by either party without the written approval and 
consent of the other party. 

No member of the Legislature of the State of Michigan or any individual employed by the state 
shall be permitted to share in this agreement of any benefit that arises from it. 

CONDITIONS FOR PAYMENT OF WORK: 

This agreement requires that all survey work be performed in accordance with Act 345 of Public 
Acts of 1990 as amended, being Section 54.261 to 54.279 of the Michigan Compiled Laws and 
the County Plan as adopted by the State Survey Commission. From time to time the Peer Group 
will outline a specific procedure to recover or replace a government comer. It is required that its 
instructions be followed to the best of the Grantee's ability. 

The County Surveyor will assign the government comer(s) to be installed by the Grantee. 

The Grantee shall install the appropriate comer marker cap and shall file a Land Comer 
Recordation Certificate as required on the form provided with the 2024 Grant. One recordable 
copy of said Certificate shall be given to the Remonumentation Grant Administrator together 
with a statement for payment of work. Said statement shall be in accordance with the schedule 
of fees and charges approved by the Lapeer County Grant Administrator. Upon approval of the 
Lapeer County Grant Administrator, payment will be made. 

Page 2 of 5 



ACCEPTANCE 
Lapeer County and the Grantee, by signature below, acknowledge that they have read this 
agreement, understand it, and agree to all its terms and conditions. Execution of this agreement 
shall constitute a notice to proceed. 

Accepted Accepted 

LAPEER COUNTY SURVEYOR 

By ___ ______ _ 

Jackie Arnold Huston Kennedy, P.S. (}� 
I 

Title: Lapeer County Grant Administrator Title V f'-a s l J di n \"
-�--- - - -�--+----

Witness ----- - - - - - -- Witn��,..., -L

Date Date 

Page 3 of5 



EXHIBIT "A" OF 2024 GRANT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
LAPEER COUNTY AND KENNEDY SURVEYING, INC. 

Dated _ _  5_,_/_I ,__/_2 �'! __

ASSIGNMENT 
A. Perform research, field investigation, uncover or locate comer evidence and witnesses (find
or establish.)
B. Assemble all information into a comer dossier file with a cover sheet listing all potential
sources with a chronological listing of reference material found.
C. Submit the dossier (one copy) with four copies of the cover sheet to the County Surveyor not
less than two weeks prior to the Peer Group Meeting. Each dossier must be bound in a manila
folder that is clearly labeled and bound with a two-hole binder.
D. Attach a list to the dossier of any and all surveyors that the monumentation surveyor believes
have any conflicts with the position the monumentation surveyor is recommending.
E. All original field notes used in determining and placing said comers shall be included in the
dossier prior to payment approval.
F. Attend Peer Group Meeting and present evidence found. Sufficient evidence must be
presented to the Peer Group of the location of the government comers for their approval. Make
recommendation for comer position. All evidence must be in the form as attached in exhibit "B"
of this contract.
G. Following ratification of comer position, place approved monument at that location and
record a Land Comer Recordation Form with the Register of Deeds office. Said comer
recordation shall be identified at the top of the form with the word "Remonumentation" and have
the same presentation as the one attached in exhibit "C" of this contract.
H. Ties to all adjacent remonumented comers or comers under contract shall be shown
on the Act 74 Form.
I. All quarter comers may include a witness tie to adjacent apparent centers of section,

evidenced by occupation or monumentation in sections which are being closed.
J. An approved file folder with all comer data included and bound in said folder shall be
submitted to the County Surveyor at the completion of all work.
K. Six (6) color photographs shall be included in the dossier. One of what was in place, one of
the new monument, and the four cardinal directions of the site.
L. A sketch shall be included on the recording document with all adjacent recorded
contract comers shown.
M. Latitude and Longitude shall be recorded on the form to the standards set by the Office of
Land Survey and Remonumentation.
N. All points that fall within a hard surface roadway must be placed in a monument box
(provided) Use a core diameter no greater than 1" larger than the largest diameter of the
monument box. Grout the monument box in place using non-shrink grout to the full depth. Do
not place grout in the monument box. Install monument boxes so neither the box nor the cover
extends above the pavement surface. Cost of placement of the box is the responsibility of the
contractor.

Page 4 of5 



0. All land corners that fall off from the roadway must be a concrete monument of not less than
4" in diameter and 36" in length with a 1/2" by 36" iron rod in the center and have an approved
Lapeer County Remonumentation Cap and be set to a depth of not less than 2.5 feet. Exceptions
will be made where this is not practical. Standard County labeled Carsonite Post shall also be
placed at the off-road corner location. These will be provided, if available.

Closing corners not falling on the township line shall be monumented on the township line and 
the historical corner shall also be monumented. Both positions shall be reported on the same 
LCRC form. 

THIS CONTRACT IS FOR THE FOLLOWING 12 CORNERS: 
MARATHON TWP, T09N-R09E
G3, G4, G5, G6, G7 & G8 
H3, H4, H5, H6, H7 & H8 

TOTAL COMPENSATION FOR THIS CONTRACT IS $16,800.00 
RESEARCH $5,040.00 
MONUMENTATION $11,760.00 

PEER GROUP ATTENDANCE WHILE PRESENTING YOUR CONTRACT CORNERS IS 
INCLUDED IN THE PRICE PER CORNER. ADDITIONAL PEER GROUP 
PARTICIPATION WILL BE COMPENSATED AT $150 PER MEETING AS LONG AS 
FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE. 

PERIOD OF SERVICE 
All work under this contract shall be completed by October 31, 2024. The Peer Group 

will meet periodically as sufficient corners are submitted to warrant a review meeting; however, 
all dossiers shall be submitted no later than September 20, 2024. 

Page 5 of5 



2024 GRANT AGREEMENT 

This agreement is entered into by: 

LAPEER COUNTY 

255 CLAY ST, 
LAPEER, MICHIGAN 48446 

and 
KENNEDY SURVEYING, INC. 

105 N. WASHINGTON ST. 
OXFORD, MI 48371 

Terms and conditions are as follows: 

DEFINITIONS 

1. The term Grantor shall mean Lapeer County and the State of Michigan.

2. The term Grantee shall mean the Monumentation Surveyor ( or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by it).

3. The term Peer Group shall mean a committee of professional surveyors whose duty is to 
review all data on government corners and determine their correct locations.

TERMS 

The Grantor intends to secure the surveying services as outlined in Exhibit A as attached. The 
standard of care for all surveying services furnished by the surveyor under the agreement will be 
the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the Grantee's profession under similar 
conditions at the same time and in the same locality. The Grantee shall provide and maintain 
public liability, property damage, and workers' compensation insurance while working for the 
Grantor. The insurance shall cover interests of all parties to this agreement, and all claims which 
may arise out of the Grantee's operations under this agreement. Certificate of Insurance with 
"Lapeer County" identified as Certificate Holder is required to be provided prior to 
commencement of work under this contract. 

The Grantee is responsible for ensuring that precautions are exercised at all times for the 
protection of persons and property. The safety provision of all applicable laws and building and 
construction codes shall be observed. The Grantee is responsible for compliance with all federal 
and state laws and municipal ordinances and regulations in any manner affecting the work 
performance of the agreement and shall always carefully observe and comply with all rules, 
ordinances, and regulations. The Grantee shall secure all necessary certificates and permits from 
municipal or other public authorities as may be required in connection with the performance of 
work covered by this agreement. 

Page 1 of5 



The Grantee agrees to comply with the following indemnification clause: 

TO THE EXTENT THAT LIABILITIES, OBLIGATIONS, DAMAGES, CLAIMS COSTS, 
CHARGES AND EXPENSES ARE CAUSED BY ANY NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR, OR 
OMISSION BY THE MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR OR (ANYONE DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY IT) ARISING FROM THE SERVICES RENDERED BY THE 
MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR, THE MONUMENTATION SURVEYOR AGREES TO 
HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY LAPEER COUNTY AND THE STATE OF 
MICHIGAN (AND ITS AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES ) FROM AND AGAINST SAID 
LIABILITIES, OBLIGATIONS, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, COSTS, CHARGES AND 
EXPENSES IMPOSED UPON THE GRANTEE. 

The Grantor, or the Grantee, may terminate this agreement at any time in whole or in part by 
delivery of a Notice of Termination to the other party. Termination may be initiated due to 
funding reductions, the elimination of funds, or if the project in whole or part is no longer 
required because of identified efficiencies and/or economies. The Grantee shall be compensated 
for the State's share of all expenditures authorized by the grant budget incurred prior to the date 
of the Notice of Termination and for those financial obligations or purchase orders authorized by 
the grant budget that cannot be cancelled. In addition, this agreement can be terminated by the 
Grantor if the Grantee fails to comply with any of the provisions of this agreement. 

Nothing in this agreement can be assigned by either party without the written approval and 
consent of the other party. 

No member of the Legislature of the State of Michigan or any individual employed by the state 
shall be permitted to share in this agreement of any benefit that arises from it. 

CONDITIONS FOR PAYMENT OF WORK: 

This agreement requires that all survey work be performed in accordance with Act 345 of Public 
Acts of 1990 as amended, being Section 54.261 to 54.279 of the Michigan Compiled Laws and 
the County Plan as adopted by the State Survey Commission. From time to time the Peer Group 
will outline a specific procedure to recover or replace a government corner. It is required that its 
instructions be followed to the best of the Grantee's ability. 

The County Surveyor will assign the government corner(s) to be installed by the Grantee. 

The Grantee shall install the appropriate corner marker cap and shall file a Land Corner 
Recordation Certificate as required on the form provided with the 2024 Grant. One recordable 
copy of said Certificate shall be given to the Remonumentation Grant Administrator together 
with a statement for payment of work. Said statement shall be in accordance with the schedule 
of fees and charges approved by the Lapeer County Grant Administrator. Upon approval of the 
Lapeer County Grant Administrator, payment will be made. 

Page 2 of5 



ACCEPTANCE 
Lapeer County and the Grantee, by signature below, acknowledge that they have read this 
agreement, understand it, and agree to all its terms and conditions. Execution of this agreement 
shall constitute a notice to proceed. 

Accepted 

LAPEER COUNTY 

By _ _ _ _ _____ _ __ 

Jackie Arnold 

Title: Lapeer County Grant Administrator 

Witness ------------

Date 

Accepted 

SURVEYOR 

By�
I Huston Kennedy, P.S. 

Wimes� -t.-., 6
r 

Date 

Page 3 of5 



EXHIBIT "A" OF 2024 GRANT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
LAPEER COUNTY AND KENNEDY SURVEYING, INC. 

Dated .'f/; / z l/ 
I I 

ASSIGNMENT 
A. Perform research, field investigation, uncover or locate comer evidence and witnesses (find
or establish.)
B. Assemble all information into a comer dossier file with a cover sheet listing all potential
sources with a chronological listing of reference material found.
C. Submit the dossier (one copy) with four copies of the cover sheet to the County Surveyor not
less than two weeks prior to the Peer Group Meeting. Each dossier must be bound in a manila
folder that is clearly labeled and bound with a two-hole binder.
D. Attach a list to the dossier of any and all surveyors that the monumentation surveyor believes
have any conflicts with the position the monumentation surveyor is recommending.
E. All original field notes used in determining and placing said comers shall be included in the
dossier prior to payment approval.
F. Attend Peer Group Meeting and present evidence found. Sufficient evidence must be
presented to the Peer Group of the location of the government comers for their approval. Make
recommendation for comer position. All evidence must be in the form as attached in exhibit "B"
of this contract.
G. Following ratification of comer position, place approved monument at that location and
record a Land Comer Recordation Form with the Register of Deeds office. Said comer
recordation shall be identified at the top of the form with the word "Remonumentation" and have
the same presentation as the one attached in exhibit "C" of this contract.
H. Ties to all adjacent remonumented comers or comers under contract shall be shown
on the Act 74 Form.
I. All quarter comers may include a witness tie to adjacent apparent centers of section,

evidenced by occupation or monumentation in sections which are being closed.
J. An approved file folder with all comer data included and bound in said folder shall be
submitted to the County Surveyor at the completion of all work.
K. Six ( 6) color photographs shall be included in the dossier. One of what was in place, one of
the new monument, and the four cardinal directions of the site.
L. A sketch shall be included on the recording document with all adjacent recorded
contract comers shown.
M. Latitude and Longitude shall be recorded on the form to the standards set by the Office of
Land Survey and Remonumentation.
N. All points that fall within a hard surface roadway must be placed in a monument box
(provided) Use a core diameter no greater than 1" larger than the largest diameter of the
monument box. Grout the monument box in place using non-shrink grout to the full depth. Do
not place grout in the monument box. Install monument boxes so neither the box nor the cover
extends above the pavement surface. Cost of placement of the box is the responsibility of the
contractor.

Page 4 of 5 



0. All land corners that fall off from the roadway must be a concrete monument of not less than
4" in diameter and 36" in length with a 1/2" by 36" iron rod in the center and have an approved
Lapeer County Remonumentation Cap and be set to a depth of not less than 2.5 feet. Exceptions
will be made where this is not practical. Standard County labeled Carsonite Post shall also be
placed at the off-road corner location. These will be provided, if available.

Closing corners not falling on the township line shall be monumented on the township line and 
the historical corner shall also be monumented. Both positions shall be reported on the same 
LCRC form. 

THIS CONTRACT IS FOR THE FOLLOWING 12 CORNERS: 
MARATHON TWP, T09N-R09E
G3, G4, GS, G6, G7 & G8 
HJ, H4, HS, H6, H7 & H8 

TOTAL COMPENSATION FOR THIS CONTRACT IS $16,800.00 
RESEARCH $5,040.00 
MONUMENTATION $11,760.00 

PEER GROUP ATTENDANCE WHILE PRESENTING YOUR CONTRACT CORNERS IS 
INCLUDED IN THE PRICE PER CORNER. ADDITIONAL PEER GROUP 
PARTICIPATION WILL BE COMPENSATED AT $150 PER MEETING AS LONG AS 
FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE. 

PERIOD OF SERVICE 
All work under this contract shall be completed by October 31, 2024. The Peer Group 

will meet periodically as sufficient corners are submitted to warrant a review meeting; however, 
all dossiers shall be submitted no later than September 20, 2024. 

Page 5 of 5 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

LAPEER COUNTY 

AND 

MR. STEVE THOMPSON, P.S. 

tJ;.
This agreement is made and entered into this ____ day of ,1v1,-,41 , 2024 by and between

Steve Thompson hereinafter referred to as "Thompson" and Lapeer County, hereinafter referred as the 

"County". 

IT IS AGREED BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND THOMPSON AS FOLLOWS: 

Date: 

Date: 

1.) Thompson will provide service to the Lapeer County Peer Review Group and the Lapeer 

County Surveyor as a consultant to review and advise on corners brought before the 

Peer Review Group. 

2.) Thompson will function under the direction of the County Surveyor. 

3.) Thompson's work services provided to the Peer Group will be in response to a request from 

the County Surveyor. 

4.) Thompson understands that this contract does not constitute a guarantee of hours or of 

work assignment. Frequency of assignments and actual number of Peer Group meetings will 

vary. 

Once assignments are established, Thompson is expected to work on the days assigned. 

5.) Thompson understands that fees for meeting are limited to $150 per meeting irrespective 

of length. 

6.) Thompson understands that total funds available are limited by Grant amounts. 

---------

N� .... 1
l 

Lapeer County Finance Department 

By: Jackie Arnold 

Its: Director 

k� 
Steve Thompson, P.S. 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

LAPEER COUNTY 

AND 

MR. STEVE THOMPSON, P.S. 

This agreement is made and entered into this 5� day of /fA frj , 2024 by and between 

Steve Thompson hereinafter referred to as "Thompson" and Lapeer County, hereinafter referred as the 

"County". 

IT IS AGREED BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND THOMPSON AS FOLLOWS: 

1.) Thompson will provide service to the Lapeer County Peer Review Group and the Lapeer 

County Surveyor as a consultant to review and advise on corners brought before the 

Peer Review Group. 

2.) Thompson will function under the direction of the County Surveyor. 

3.) Thompson's work services provided to the Peer Group will be in response to a request from 

the County Surveyor. 

4.) Thompson understands that this contract does not constitute a guarantee of hours or of 

work assignment. Frequency of assignments and actual number of Peer Group meetings will 

vary. 

Once assignments are established, Thompson is expected to work on the days assigned. 

5.) Thompson understands that fees for meeting are limited to $150 per meeting irrespective 

of length. 

6.) Thompson understands that total funds available are limited by Grant amounts. 

Date: ________ _ 

Lapeer County Finance Department 

By: Jackie Arnold 

Its: Director 

L� ✓ 

Steve Thompson, P.S. 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

LAPEER COUNTY 

AND 

MR. RAY DAVIS, P.S. 

This agreement is made and entered into this / day of ./UA-v, , 2024 by and between Ray 
Davis hereinafter referred to as "Davis" and Lapeer County, hereina.i/eneferred as the "County". 

IT IS AGREED BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND DAVIS AS FOLLOWS: 

1.) Davis will provide service to the Lapeer County Peer Review Group and the Lapeer 
County Surveyor as a consultant to review and advise on corners brought before the 
Peer Review Group. 

2.) Davis will function under the direction of the County Surveyor. 
3.) Davis' work services provided to the Peer Group will be in response to a request from the 

County Surveyor. 
4.) Davis understands that this contract does not constitute a guarantee of hours or of work 

assignment. Frequency of assignments and actual number of Peer Group meetings will vary. 
Once assignments are established, Davis is expected to work on the days assigned. 

5.) Davis understands that Fees for meeting are limited to $150 per meeting irrespective 
of length. 

6.) Davis understands that total funds available are limited by Grant amounts. 

Date: ________ _ 

Lapeer County Finance Department 

By: Jackie Arnold 

Date: 5 /-2 t/



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

LAPEER COUNTY 

AND 

MR. RAY DAVIS, P.S. 

This agreement is made and entered into this __ ;_· __ -'-----1--' 2024 by and between Ray 
Davis hereinafter referred to as "Davis" and Lapeer County, hereina referred as the "County". 

IT IS AGREED BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND DAVIS AS FOLLOWS: 

1.) Davis will provide service to the Lapeer County Peer Review Group and the Lapeer 
County Surveyor as a consultant to review and advise on corners brought before the 
Peer Review Group. 

2.) Davis will function under the direction of the County Surveyor. 
3.) Davis' work services provided to the Peer Group will be in response to a request from the 

County Surveyor. 
4.) Davis understands that this contract does not constitute a guarantee of hours or of work 

assignment. Frequency of assignments and actual number of Peer Group meetings will vary. 
Once assignments are established, Davis is expected to work on the days assigned. 

5.) Davis understands that Fees for meeting are limited to $150 per meeting irrespective 
of length. 

6.) Davis understands that total funds available are limited by Grant amounts. 

Date: ________ _ 

Date: S-- I - 2-. (/ 

Lapeer County Finance Department 

By: Jackie Arnold 

Its: Director 

4a ; 

Ray Davis P .S. 



REQUEST FOR ACTION 

DATE: _May 2,2024 ____________ _ 

_xx_ REQUEST FOR ACTION 

__ FOR YOUR INFORMATION 

__ REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

TO: Lapeer County Board of Commissioners 

FROM: John Miller, Prosecuting Attorney 

**************************************************************** 

@ 

SUMMARY OF REQUEST/ INFORMATION: Authorization to renew Karpel 
software annual fees. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: Budget Line item 205-296-850-200 
{Prosecuting Attorney/ Technology License) has a current balance of 
$17,390.67 prior to this request. 

CONTACT PERSON{S): John Miller 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Karpel Solutions provides the case 
management software utilized daily by the Office of the Prosecuting Attorney. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Invoice attached. 

DRAFT MOTION: 
Motion by ----� supported by----------# to approve the 
payment of annual fees in the amount of $14,625.00 for Karpel Solutions from 
budget line item 205-296-850-200. 

ATTACHMENTS YES_X_ NO __ 



Bill To: 
Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney's 
Office- MI 
Attn:John MIiier 
255 Clay Street 
Lapeer, Ml 48446 
United States 

Terms Due Date PO Number Reference 

Karpel Solutions 
9 717 landmark Parkway Drive 
Sulte200 
St. Louis, MO 63127 
(314) 892-6300

'Date
�/26/2024 

ShlDTO 

!Invoice
66978 

Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney's 
Office- MI 
255 aay Street 
Lapeer, MI 48446 
United States 

Net30 da 05/26/2024 Annual Blllin for Ma 2024- rll 2025 

Manaaed Services Details Ouantltvl Prlcel Amount 
Agreement PBK Annual Maintenance 

Annual PBK Maintenance 15.00 $450.00 $6,750.00 

Additional Storage 
11TB/2TB Free 

9.00 $500.00 $4,500.00 

9TB Billable 

Agreement PBK Annual Hosting 

Annual PBK Hosting Fee 15.00 $100.00 $1,500.00 

Agreement PBK Annual Hosted eDlscovery 

PBK E-Dlscovery Annual Service Fee 1.00 $1,875.00 $1,875.00 

Total Managed Services $14,625.00 
Details: 

Invoice Subtotal: $14.625.00 
Make checks payable to: Below Sales Tax: $0.00 Kareel Solutions

Invoice Total: 9717 Landmar Partcwa� Dr. Ste 200 $1 4,625.00 
St Louis, MO 6 127 Pavments: $0.00 

Credits: $0.00 
Balance Due: $14625.00 



LAPEER COUNTY 

1570 Suncrest Drive, Lapeer, Michigan 48446 
(810) 667-0500 FAX: (810) 664-8728 

Date: April 16, 2024 

To: 

--�X�_ Request for Action 
_____ For Your Information 
_____ Re9uest for Information 

Lapeer County Board of Commissioners - Regular Board Meeting 

From: Lapeer County Community Mental Health 

Summary of Request/Information: 

Requesting approval of attached amended budget. 

Additional information: 

Motion #0324-004 Lapeer County Community Mental Health Services Board at its 
Board meeting on March 07, 2024 approved these amendments for the fiscal year 
2023-2024. 

Contact person(st 

� <� ,/-? 
Brooke Sankiewicz, Chief Executive Officer or�;� 2--(�
Lacey Klimek, Finance Department f / 

---/ 
Background Information: 

To adjust the CMH budget to reflect the estimated revenue and expenses for 
the fiscal year 2023-2024. 

Supporting Documents: 

Budget Amendment Form. 

Draft Motion: 

Move to approve Lapeer County Community Mental Health Budget 
Amendments for the fiscal year 2023-2024. 

Attachments: Yes X No 



LAPEER COUNTY 

BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM 

FUND NAME: CMH 
-----

ORIGINATOR: Lacey Klimek 4/16/2024 

ACCOUNT NUMBERS 

FUND ACTIVITY ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 

222 649 506 . 000 CCBHC Revenue- DEMO R-10 Medicaid Supplemental 

222 649 542 . 000 SUD Revenue- State Grant Reimbursement 

222 649 571 . 000 SUD Revenue- Convention Facility Development 

222 649 581 • 000 SUD Revenue- Local Contributions 

222 649 638 . 020 PIHP Contract- Medicaid Revenue 

222 649 638 . 080 Other Local Income 

222 649 681 . 010 Earned Contracts 

222 990 695 . 010 Local Match- Other (Rent) 

222 990 695 . 148 Local Match- Other (Lapeer County Parks Proiect) 

222 990 695 . 208 Local Match- Other (MPCB) 

222 990 699 . 259 Local Match- Other (KIND) 

222 990 695 . 299 Operating Transfers/County Appropriations 

222 990 699 . 148 Local Match- Other (Rent) 

222 990 699 . 208 Local Match- Other (Lapeer County Parks Project) 

222 990 699 . 222 Local Match- Other (MPCB) 

222 990 699 . 259 Local Match- Other (KIND) 

222 990 699 . 299 Operating Transfers/County Appropriations 

222 649 704 . 000 Salary - Permanent 

222 649 714 . 000 Medicare- Employer Share 

222 649 715 . 000 Social Securitv- FICA Employer Share 

ALL BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUESTS MUST BALANCE!!! 

(/i;/ 
DEPT.HEAD:.� MOTION #:_0324-004 ___ _ 

ORIGINAU 

AMENDED 

BUDGET 

. 

. 

. 

. 

29,778,018 

75,000 

381,389 

65,084 

66,000 

6,500 

20,000 

110,400 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

$8,621,830 

138,606 

592,660 

RECEIVED: 

REVIEWED: 

FORWARDED: 

RETURNED: 

PRIOR REQUEST 

AMENDED BUDGET 

BUDGET INCREASE 

$10,447,452 

140,000 

91,536 

82,980 

42,238 

66,084 

66,000 

6,500 

20,000 

110,400 

1,880,282 

16,389 

70,078 

t-f, 18-a?t, of 3.JB, 

-----------

REQUEST NEW 

BUDGET AMENDED 

DECREASE BUDGET 

$10,447,452 

140,000 

91,536 

82,980 

7,290,801 22,487,217 

117,238 

206,389 175,000 

66,084 . 

66,000 . 

6,500 . 

20,000 . 

110,400 . 

66,084 

66,000 

6,500 

20,000 

110,400 

$10,502,112 

154,995 

662,738 

COMPUTER ENTRY BY: ______ _ 

DATE ENTERED: ______ _ 



Page 2 of 3 

LAPEER COUNTY RECEIVED : 

BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM REVIEWED: 

FUND NAME: CMH FORWARDED: 
----- -----------

ORIGINATOR: Lacey Klimek 4116/2024 RETURNED; 

ORIGINAU PRIOR REQUEST REQUEST NEW 

ACCOUNT NUMBERS AMENDED AMENDED BUDGET BUDGET AMENDED 

FUND ACTIVITY ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET INCREASE DECREASE BUDGET 

222 649 716 . 000 CMH Hospital / Medical / Optical Insurance 1,765,888 416,012 2,181,900 

222 649 717 . 000 Life Insurance 10,140 1,000 11,140 

222 649 718 . 000 Retirement - Employer Share 1,630,418 578,403 1,052,015 

222 649 723 . 000 PEHBNEBA 46,800 4,680 51,480 

222 649 728 . 000 Postage 13,000 2,000 15,000 

222 649 730 . 000 Office Supplies 232,398 24,000 256,398 

222 649 801 . 010 Consulting- Financial & Contract Management Services 279,300 4,500 274,800 

222 649 810 . 040 Custodial Services 75,929 3,970 79,899 

222 649 813 . 000 Other Contracted Services 987,635 10,000 997,635 

222 649 813 • 019 Specialized Residential Services Contracts (AFC) 4,079,945 1,459,055 5,539,000 

222 649 813 . 021 Consulting- Physician Services- CMH & Group Homes 912,980 34,000 946,980 

222 649 813 . 102 SPMI Contracted Services 304,500 50,000 354,500 

222 649 813 . 150 Self Determination- SW 405,075 20,000 385,075 

222 649 813 . 160 Group Home Building Leases 159,520 7,000 166,520 

222 649 813 . 171 MCSI Lapeer- CLS 210,324 10,000 200,324 

222 649 813 . 180 Dav Programming 1,597,773 60,000 1,537,773 

222 649 813 . 220 Community Livinq Services- CLS 230,000 30,000 200,000 

222 649 813 . 240 Respite Services 201,000 16,000 185,000 

222 649 813 . 250 Respite Services- Other/Camo 5,000 2,500 7,500 

222 649 813 . 290 CLS Services- L TIN 113,712 7,000 106,712 

222 649 941 011 Group Home - Equipment Reimbursement 47,396 3,500 43,896 

ALL BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUESTS MUST BALANCE!!! 

COMPUTER ENTRY BY: ______ _ 

DEPT. HEAD: ___________ _ MOTION #:_0324-004 ___ _ DATE ENTERED: ____ _  _ 



LAPEER COUNTY 

BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM 

FUND NAME: CMH 
-----

ORIGINATOR: Lacey Klimek 4/16/2024 

ACCOUNT NUMBERS 

FUND ACTIVITY ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 

222 649 941 .020 CMH Buildinq Rent 

222 649 956 . 000 Professional Educationrrraining- CMH Staff/Group Home DCW 

222 649 969 . 000 County Cost Allocation 

222 649 975 . 110 CMH BuildinQ Repairs & Maintance Contract 

222 649 977 . 000 Equipment 

ALL BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUESTS MUST BALANCE!!! 

DEPT. HEAD: ___________ _ 

TOTALS 

MOTION#: 0324-004 
----

ORIGINAU 

AMENDED 

BUDGET 

97,017 

67,000 

464,520 

165,180 

45,000 

$54,003,937 

RECEIVED: 
Page 3 of 3 

REVIEWED: 

FORWARDED: 
-----------

RETURNED: 

PRIOR REQUEST REQUEST NEW 

AMENDED BUDGET BUDGET AMENDED 

BUDGET INCREASE DECREASE BUDGET 

51,192 148,209 

7,000 60,000 

8,761 473,281 

7,500 157,680 

10,000 55,000 

. 

. 

$0 $15,124,109 $8,510,077 $60,617,969 

COMPUTER ENTRY BY: ______ _ 

DATE ENTERED: 
-------



LAPEER COUNTY 

� 'mentat �eattlt � 
1570 Suncrest Drive, Lapeer, Michigan 48446

(810) 667-0500 FAX: (810) 664-8728 

Date: April 25, 2024 

To: 

--�X�_ Request for Action 
_____ For Your Information 
_____ Request for Information 

Lapeer County Board of Commissioners - Regular Board Meeting 

From: Lapeer County Community Mental Health 

Summary of Request/Information: 

Requesting transfer of $89,661.33 from appropriation to expenditure, which 
represents second of the three transfers for the fiscal year 2023-2024. Please
credit this money to general ledger account #222 990 695.(010-299). 

Additional information: 

l. The Lapeer County allocated $268,984.00 to CMH as county match for
the current fiscal year. 

2. Motion #0424-011 approved by the Lapeer County Community Mental 
Health Services Board at its Board meeting on April 18, 2024 authorizing
the CMH Director to make this request. 

Contact person(s): 

Brooke Sankiewicz, Chief Executive Ollicer'�-
e £/y 

Lacey Klimek, Fmance Department -----= · '--- -

V 
Background Information: 

Requested transfer is based on total appropriation of $268,984.00 for the fiscal
year. 

Supporting Documents: 

None. 

Draft Motion: 

Move to transfer $89,661.33, representing second of the three installments 
toward the annual allocation of $268,984.00 from CMH appropriations to CMH
expenditure. 

Attachments: Yes No X 



e LAPEER COUNTY 

COMMUNITY 

T HEAT 
SUPPOiH t1 CARE FOR CO:viPl.ETE W[Lli/ESS 

01570 Suncrest Dr., Lapeer, Ml 48446 G 810.667.0500 O 810.664.8728 8 lapeercmh.org 

Request for Action 

Date: April 29, 2024 

To: Lapeer County Board of Commissioners 

From: Brooke Sankiewicz, CEO�---¥ 

Summary of Request/Information: 

Request approval of the Lapeer County Community Mental Health annual needs 
assessment. The needs assessment is completed annually to determine the 
mental health needs of the residents of Lapeer County and identifies services 
necessary to meet those needs. The annual needs assessment is submitted to 
MDHHS. 

Contact Person(s): 

Brooke Sankiewicz, Chief Executive Officer 

Background Information: 

A Public Hearing was posted for the appropriate timeframe and publications as 
outlined in the Mental Health Code. The CMH Board approved the needs 
assessment at their meeting on April 18, 2024. 

Supporting Documentation: 

Needs Assessment attached 

Draft Motion: 

Moved by ____ supported by _____ to approve the Lapeer County 
Community Mental Health annual needs assessment. 



FY23 
OCTOBER 1, 2022 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

e LAPEER COUNTY 

COMMUNITY 
MENTAL HEALTH 

COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 

The mandated annual assessment is conducted collaboratively with stakeholders. It gathers and 

analyzes data from diverse sources to help understand county demographics, healthcare access, and 

educational outcomes. This needs assessment also serves as a data-driven tool for community health 

promotion and decision-making. 

Population Dynamics and Vulnerabilities 

The census data reveals demographics of Lapeer County, reflects the evolving needs, of the vulnerable 

populations. 

Lapeer County Census Population 

Lapeer County's population has increased overall from 2013 to 2023. 

90,000 
89,000 
88,000 
87,000 
86,000 
85,000 
84,000 
83,000 
82,000 
81,000 
80,000 

88,389 

2013 

88,310 88,373 

2015 

Source: htt p://worl<lpupulntiunrnvicw.co111/ 11s-cu11111ics/mi/ 

. 88,310 

---------_ 86.61 �
9 

�o/ 

2017 2019 2021 2023 



People with Developmental Disabilities 

Estimates of individuals with developmental disabilities in Lapeer County increased 2013 to 2023 

450.0 

440.0 

430.0 
441.9 441.9 -------� 

433.3 

443.1 

420.0 

410.0 

400.0 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

'Estimate based on 0.5% of Lapeer County population 

A.duh Michiganders with Serious Mental Illness 

About 4. 7% of Michiganders are diagnosed with a serious mental illness. Based on that percentage and 
the population of Lapeer County, it is estimated that there are 4,165 Lapeer County residents living 
with a serious mental illness. 

Source: https ://www.samhsa.gov/data/sites/d efault/files/reports/rpt32839 /Michigan-SH -Barometer_ Volume6 .pdf 

Children at risk for Serious Mental Disturbance due to 100% 

below Poverty 

The CDC named this a significant marker of data due to the increased risk of poor mental health for 
children that are living 100% below national poverty level. 

450 

440 

441.945 4'11.865 � / 4'13.095 

'130 
433.325 

420 

410 

400 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Source: https://data.census.gov /?intcmp=aff _cedsci_banner 



Houseless Point-in-Time Count 

The number of houseless individuals appears to fluctuate from year to year. 

200 
193 

180 

160 

140 

120 
101 

100 

80 

60 46 48 

40 

20 

0 

2013 2015 2017 2019 2020 2022 2023 

-Lapeer Bi-ennial Homeless Count -# served from CMHSP data- of persons that are homeless

Source: Housing Development Commission, Lapeer CMH Record 

Veteran Population 

Lapeer County has a higher (9. 7%) population of Veterans compared to Michigan (5.8%) overall. 

Source: https://data.census.gov/table/ACSST1Y2022.S2101 ?q =veterans%20in%20michigan 

Suicide Loss 

Lapeer County has lost 10 individuals to suicide in 2023 a majority are male above the age 55 and 

utilized a firearm in the means of loss of life. 

Age 

Gender 4 

2 2 2 

I I I 
1 

I
1 

I 0 

0 0 

Male Female 0-18 18-25 25-35 36-55 55-65 65-75 



Suffocation 
Vehicle Accident 

10% 

Overdose 

10% 

Source: Lapeer County Suicide Prevention Network 

Firearm Wound 

60% 

Medicaid Enrollment (September Point-in-Time)

Lapeer County Medicaid enrollment is consistent 2013-2023 

25,000 

20,000 
19408 

------

__ ... - -- 16711 
--

14, 728 --- -· -, 

15,000 -,_ 

10,000 

5,000 

0 

2013 2015 2017 2019 

15,897 

------

-----

2021 2023 

Does not include Healthy Michigan numbers. Source. http,:/ /l•J\·1W.111ichigan.go'l/111rlhhs/O,�ac5, /-339 7 15-1 I •1860· i ,,Doi - ,OO.h1n1l 



Social Support Systems and Interventions 

Lapeer County's response to these challenges is multifaceted, with initiatives ranging from community 

employment programs to jail diversions foster care beds special education 

Lapeer County En1ployment 

Lapeer County employment has increased from 2013 to 2023 

42,000 

40,000 

38,000 36,849 

36,000 

34,000 

32,000 

30,000 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Source: State of Michigan Labor Market Information https://milmi.org/DataSearch/LAUS 

Justice Systen1 

Lapeer County jail diversions decreased from 2013 to 2023 

50 

40 

30 

20 

10 

51 

40,531 

36,504 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

-Goal -Jail diversions

Source: LCCMH Data 



Education Syste1n 

The majority of Lapeer County students graduated in 2022 with about a 7% drop out rate. 

1200 

1000 

800 

600 

400 

200 

0 

1000 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

■ Lapeer County Graduation Rate 11 Lapeer County Dropout Rate 

Source: Lapeer ISA and http://datacenter.kidscount.org/data/bystate/Default.aspx?state= MI 

Education System Continued 

2021 

The number of students aging out or graduating from special education is consistent 2013-2023. 

90 
84 

80 

80 

70 

60 

50 

40 

30 

20 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

2022 

70 

2023 



Access to Care 

Providers in Lapeer County offer different avenues to access the care and support an individual who 

needs support with mental health. 

Pri1nary Care Physician 

The majority of LCCMH persons served have a primary care physician on record 

■ Yes ■ No

Source - LCCMH Data. Point in time data pulled 3/1/2024 

Public and Private Providers 

The number of public and private substance use disorder providers in Lapeer County has remained 

consistent, and many are accepting new clients. 

16 

14 

12 

10 

14 14 

8 

6 

4 

2 

0 

2013 2014 

8 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

-Private Providers and Public SUD Providers

-Number of providers that are accepting new clients

13 

2021 2022 2023 



Service .Request Disposition 

Lapeer County Community Mental Health continues to provide consistent evidence-based care for 

individuals experiencing mental health conditions. 

2,614 62 1,147 40 
Total number of persons 

' Walk-in or call to request 
I Met eligibility criteria Waitlisted 

served services 

•Includes grant runded programs. Compared to 1,506 in Compared to l,024 in 2022. 
Compared to 167 in 

Compared to 2,312 in 2021. 2022. 2022 



Priority Areas 

The stakeholder satisfaction survey is conducted every 2 years with various community partners, CMH 

staff and Board members, and persons served. The feedback received from this survey helps identify the 

priority issues and guides responses listed below 

Priority Issue 1 

Increase education and collaboration with community partners 

Response: 

O Reach out to local police departments 

O Maintain participation in the Lapeer Community Collaborative 

O Attend monthly Community Resource meetings 

O Conduct education and awareness efforts 

Priority Issue 2

Expand transportation services 

Response: 

• • 

Contact out-of- Collaborate with 
county Mid-Valley, NOT A, 
transportation and MTA 
providers 

• 

Work with natural 

supports and home 

providers for 

transportation 

►



Priority Issue 3

Appropriate office space to conduct individual and crisis sessions 

Response 

Address the need for additional space at Maple Grove 

Explore office leases and portable units 

Optimize space utilization at the Main Building 

Priority Issue 4

Access to services 

Response: 

O Same-day intakes for adults and plan for children 

O CCBHC Demonstration site 

O Address staffing shortages and transportation barriers 

Priority Issue 5

Groups addressing specific mental health topics 

Response 

Train staff in Zero Suicide model and Evidence-Based Practices 

Offer various support groups (e.g., DBT, PTC, WRAP, WHAM) 

Develop trauma-informed care work plans 

Provide regular cultural competency trainings 



Overview 

The identified priority issues directly stem from the needs assessment conducted, which highlighted gaps 

and challenges in the community's mental health services. The assessment uncovered limitations in 

education and collaboration with community partners, insufficient transportation services, inadequate 

office space, barriers to accessing services, and a lack of support groups for various mental health 

concerns. The priority issues identify areas requiring attention and action to address and improve overall 

mental health services within the community. 

/ta\ LAPEER COUNTY

�{OMMUNITY 
MENTAL HEALTH 

COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023 



DATE: 

TO: 

May 3, 2024 

XX REQUEST FOR ACTION 

__ FOR YOUR INFORMATION 

__ REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

FROM: Moses Sanzo, County Controller/Administrator 

********************************************************************** 

SUMMARY OF REQUEST /INFORMATION: Request authorization to pay the May
invoice from Shifman Fournier for labor related legal services. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 

CONTACT PERSON(S): Moses Sanzo and/or Doreen Clark

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Legal Summary for Invoice #15640 

DRAFT MOTION: 

Motion by _______ supported by ______ to recommend 
to the Full Board to authorize payment to Shifman Fournier, PLC, in the 
amount of $2,235.00 for labor related legal services rendered through 
April 30, 2024, to be paid from line item #101-239-801.020. 

ATTACHMENTS YES X NO __ _ 



Howard L. Shifman 

Brandon Fournier 

Robert Nyovich - Of Counsel 

VIA EMAIL ONLY 

�,,, 

1111 
shifman 
fournier 

PRIVILEGED ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION 

May 1, 2024 

Moses Sanzo, County Administrator/Controller 
Lapeer County 
255 Clay Street 
Lapeer, Ml 48446 

Re: Lapeer County/Invoice for Services 

Mr. Sanzo: 

Attached please find our invoice for services through April 30, 2024. 

Invoice No. 15640 

Lapeer County -
General 

/ 

Sheriff's Department 
CMH 
FOC 
District Court 
Health Department 
911 MAPE 
911 POAM 
Non-Union 

TOTAL DUE 

$1,785.00 

$ 375.00 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 75.00 
$ 

$2,235.00 

Please make check payable to Shifman Fournier, PLC 

31600 Telegraph Road, Suite100 

Bingham Farms, Ml 48025 

Phone (248) 594-8700 

Fax (248) 594-7080 

shifmanfournier.com 



Thank you for your attention in this matter. If you have any questions or comments,
please feel free to contact me at your convenience. 

Very truly yours,
/1 

S

.

}ifi=IYIAN F�U�N
. 
IE </ 

1 l.1 < ··' 

(_) eyr)t/; _ . VL(? t< /;:5 
�eJ��a Fanego, Office Ad�t&ator
l_ffissica@sh ifma nfou rn ier.com 

Cc Doreen Clark, Office Manager & FOIA Coordinator



REQUEST FOR ACTION 

DATE: _5/3/2024 ___________ _ 

_x_ REQUEST FOR ACTION 

__ FOR YOUR INFORMATION 

__ REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

TO: Board of Commissioners 

FROM: Finance 

**************************************************************** 

SUMMARY OF REQUEST/ INFORMATION: Request to approve Budget 
Amendment for Polly Ann Trail 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: Funding was approved with Board Motions: 
124-2023, 36-2024, 81-2024,

CONTACT PERSON(S): Jackie Arnold 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Board Motions 

DRAFT MOTION: Motion by __ , Supported by __ _, to approved the 
attached Budget Amendment for Polly Ann Trail Fund 214, to reflect the 
approved funding. 

ATTACHMENTS YES __ x_ NO __ 



LAPEER COUNTY 
BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM 

FUND NAME :?0l\41\-nn l'ra,;d) 0 � 11 
0 RIG I NA TOR: s, o...0 X::i u. ):) t\ n-P ::n-·

DATE SUBMITTED: ,�-�--ol\

ACCOUNT NUMBERS 
FUND ACTIVITY ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 

8)t..\ 751 SLJ 8 .ooo 5+ oJ··E::.-- hro!.'1+' 
c914 lSd 666-C.()0 rec\Q_r{l.\ ie.-� rf\. 

:;}/q 1c1 
:.,,;l.d 5Lld,OC()

�l l t ,\ C'Ct f, �, ('i1.,r,· �

9 \ 1...1 l 5k_) blll oc6 (' n (\+n \) J-i on

d l "-{ 75 l Al3.ocD /;(tt· rn (\A-o.�\
• _ _,_,.. 11;.Jl,. .• .,. 

8\', 158-- 0 11"') 

I) ID .00::::'.) Ce(\+ rlk (\;h1..f� 
Bi t�l l5l-, � j r) ()-')0rJ cJ, . C �')(\-\-cn.C'.+e_d 

.. , � 

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET 

A-·
. .  

-e-· 

\0 IV��_.,., 
I 

-er

A· 
� 

7. J

\0.()()C,. _.. 
( 

ALL BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUESTS MUST BALANCE!!!' 

PRIOR 
AMENDED 
BUDGET 

-Pr 
-e--·

ID.tY;�.= 
I 

-A-

�· 
-�,:;• ·-, ./ 

I u, OC;{) "=-.,.-
' 

RECEIVED 
REVIEWED 

FORWARDED: ------

RETURNED : _____ _ 

REQUEST REQUEST 
BUDGET BUDGET 

INCREASE DECREASE 

15.oco.-
,9813fYJ ...... 

2 .,,. d03 -
"'-..J':J,' r • 

I 5, Q(X), ·-·
I 

I 5.C>C() . -·
I 

�B7.3cn:-fl 

fSC).D.'Y).e? 
: 

COMPUTER ENTRY BY: 

NEW 
AMENDED 
BUDGET 

·C "'C() -
i 

o'1'\·· 
' :J - ...... ' 

I'\ Cl =1 re, Cr! �
;dD , � v, 

45,0Xi:
=

16 ('i\f') _, �- . U\,-.d.._.. l 
I 

[C::,1···00 ---

.;:...1,,,_'f. l 

;:).02 ·-, q rt• , ·-
( . .l ,:);...,,01 

I 

/d:),O{)().-' 

----

DEPT. HEAD: �-===-- MOTION#: ____ DATE ENTERED 



Regular Board Meeting April 27, 2023 Page 4 of 8 

123-2023

Motion by Hamilton, supported by Haggadone, to authorize payment to Shifman Fournier, 
in the amount of $825.00, for labor related legal services rendered through March 31, 
2023, to be paid from line item 101-239-801.020. Motion carried. 

124-2023

Motion by Zender, supported by Howell, to adopt the following Resolution regarding the 
Dryden Casey Project Michigan Department of Natural Resources Spark Grant 
Agreement ; and further, to accept the Grant Agreement to authorize the ChairNice-Chair 
to sign said agreement. 

RESOLUTION #2023-R004 
TO ACCEPT THE DRYDEN CASEY PROJECT 

M.D.N.R. SPARK GRANT AGREEMENT

BE IT RESOLVED, that Lapeer County, Michigan, does hereby accept the terms of the 
Agreement as received from the Michigan Department of Natural Resources, and that 
the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners, does hereby specifically agree, but not by 
way of limitation, as follows: 

1. To make available all funds necessary to complete the project during the project
period and to provide a local match through a financial commitment and donation
of eleven thousand four hundred and ninety-two ($11,492.00) dollars to match the
grant authorized by the DEPARTMENT.

2. To maintain satisfactory financial accounts, documents, and records to make them
available to the DEPARTMENT for auditing at reasonable times in perpetuity.

3. To construct the project and provide such funds, services, and materials as may
be necessary to satisfy the terms of said Agreement.

4. To regulate the use of the facility constructed and reserved under this Agreement
to assure the use thereof by the public on equal and reasonable terms.

5. To comply with any and all terms of said Agreement including all terms not
specifically set forth in the foregoing portions of this Resolution."

Roll Call vote: Zender, aye; Hamilton, aye; Howell, aye; Knisely, aye; Mast, aye; 
Haggadone, aye; Kohlman, aye. 7 ayes. Motion carried unanimously. 

125-2023
Motion by Haggadone, supported by Hamilton, to approve the submitted Independent
Contractor Agreement for the Managed Assigned Counsel Administrator between the
County of Lapeer and Attorney Kayleen Hendler, for the County's Indigent Defense
Program, effective the partial term of May 1, 2023 through September 30, 2023, which is
the term of the current grant; and further, to authorize the Interim County Controller and
Chairman to sign said agreement. Motion carried.

126-2023
Motion by Zender, supported by Mast, to have the Household Hazardous Waste Fall event 
on the April 27, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Agenda. Motion carried. 

DRAFT 



LAPEER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

January 11, 2024 

Chairman Kohlman called the meeting to order at 9:57 a.m. In the Commission Chambers 
on the lower level of the County Complex Building. Commissioner Haggadone opened 
the meeting with prayer. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

Present: 

AGENDA 

33-2024

Tom Kohlman 
Gary Howell 
Kevin Knisely 
Brad Haggadone 
Truman Mast 
William Hamilton 
Bryan Zender 

Dlstrlct#1 
Dlstrict#2 
Dlstrlct#3 
Dlstrlct#4 
District #5 
Olstrlct#6 
DlstrlcI#7 

Motion by Howell, supported by Knlsely, to accept the agenda with the addlUon of
Committee appointment to the Mental Health Services Board and the Emergency
Management Advisory Council, and the deletion of a closed session. Motion carried.

PUBLIC TIME - One person spoke during public time. 

34-2024 
Motion by Knisely, supported by Zender, pursuant to Motion #362-2023 from the 
November 30, 2023 Regular Board Meeting, to allocate and authorize up to $6.8M of 
A.R.P.A. Funds towards the Torzewskl County Wetlands Waler Park Renovation Project, 
Option #1 (Fund 281, expenditure category 2.35); and further, to authorize the Building & 
Grounds/Perks Director to proceed with ordering the Watersllde and other project 
components that require a longer ordering tlmeframe In order to meet the construction 
deadlines, with the understanding that all purchases will be made With the assistance and 
oversight of the Project Engineers end all appropriate County financial, purchasing and 
bid policies wlll be followed. Motion carried. 

35-2024
Motion by Zender, supported by Mast, pursuant to the recommendation of the Properties 
Committee, to authorize Buildings and Grounds/Parks Department to proceed with Rowe 
Professional Service Co. for engineering plans for the Polly Ann Trail Grant. Motion 
carried. 

36-2024
Motion by Zender, supported by Mast, to accept the grant Memorandum of Understanding
and Agreement be\ween the County of Lapeer and the Michigan Department of Natural
Resources, In the amount of $45,000.00 plus the $15,000.00 In matching funds from the
Friends of the Polly Ann Trail and Dryden Township, for a total of $60,000.00 for
Engineering Services work related to the Polly Ann Trail Project, as submitted and
presented, and to Issue a notice to proceed to Rowe engineering; and further, to authorize
the Chairman to sign said agreement. Motion carried.



Regular Board Meeting February 22, 2024 Page 4 of7 

73-2024
Motion by Hamilton, supported by Zender, to enter into a three (3) year contract with MGT 
of America Consulting, LLC for the Friend of the Court and Prosecuting Attorney Title IV
O Cooperative Reimbursement Program, as submitted, and further, to authorize the 
ChairNice-Chair to sign said contract. Motion carried. 

74-2024
Motion by Hamilton, supported by Zender, to authorize Probate Court to purchase Training 
from University of Cincinnati Corrections Institute in the amount of $6,750.00 for Youth 
Level Assessment Tool. Motion carried. 

75-2024
Motion by Hamilton, supported by Zender, to accept the State of Michigan 2024 County 
Veteran Service Fund Grant awarded up to $93,689.85, and further, to authorize the 
ChairNice-Chair to sign said Grant. Motion carried. 

76-2024
Motion by Hamilton, supported by Zender, to authorize payment to Shifman Fournier, PLC 
in the amount of $1,035.00, for labor related legal services rendered through January 31, 
2024, to be paid from line item 101-239-801.020. Motion carried. 

77-2024
Motion by Knisely, supported by Mast, to authorize Administration to purchase a renewal 
subscription from SHI for the Budget Book Software, in the amount of $20,556.00, to be 
paid from line item 101-228-813.030. Motion carried. 

Valley Area Agency on Aging (V AAA) Executive Board 

78-2024
Motion by Howell, supported by Knisely, to re-appoint Willa Talley to serve on the Valley 
Area Agency on Aging 0/AAA) Executive Board for a two-year term ending December 31, 
2025. Motion carried. 

79-2024
Motion by Zender, supported by Haggadone, pursuant to the recommendation of the 
Properties Committee, to authorize the County to sell passenger van to Central State 
Group Home at a price of $14,243.00. Motion carried. 

80-2024
Motion by Zender, supported by Haggadone, pursuant to the recommendation of the 
Properties Committee, to authorize the reassignment of the current vehicle from MSUE to 
Building and Grounds general fleet. Motion carried. 

81-2024
Motion by Zender, supported by Haggadone, pursuant to the recommendation of the 
Properties Committee, to accept the grant Memorandum of Understanding and Agreement 
between the County of Lapeer and the Michigan Department of Natural Resources in the 
amount of $15,000.00 for funding of regular maintenance along the Polly Ann Trail; and 
further to authorize the Chairman to sign said grant agreement. Motion carried. 




